LOK SABHA

THE CRIMINAL LAW (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1980

(REPORT OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE)

[Presented on the 2nd November, 1982]



LOK SABHA SECRETARIAT NEW DELHI

November 1982/Kartika 1904 (Saka)
Price. Rs. 5-40

LOK SABHA ASECRETARIAT

CORRIGEND A

Report of the Joint Committee on the Criminal Law (Amendment) v. Bill. 1980

Page iv, line 2, for 'Shri Leonard Soliman Saring' read '+Shri Leonard Soloman Saring'

Page xxxiii, line 17, for 'bt' read 'be'

Page xxv, last line, for 'Karteika' read 'Kartika'

Page xxvi, line 27, for 'porhibited' read 'prohibited'

Page 8, line 8, for 'elevent' read 'eleven

Page 11, line 10 from bottom for 'Kavarathi' read 'Kavaratti'

Page 15, line 1, for 'India' read 'Indian'

Page 24, line 19 from bottom for 'Woraen's' read 'Women's'

Page 127, line 10, for 'Kalayan Salhakar' read 'Kalyan Salahkar'

Page 33, line 9, for 'Balblani' read 'Bablani'

Page 36, line 19, for 'Twelth' read 'Twelfth'

Page 74, line 13, after 'woman' insert 'who'

Page 84, line 16, for 'Forty-second' read 'Forty-first'

Page 87, (i) line 9, under the heading 'S.No. 'put '9'

(ii) line 11, for 'gdd' read 'add'

Page 90,

- (i) line 31, for 'numberd' read 'numbered'
- (ii) line 5 from bottom, omit
- (iii) line 5 from bottom, for 'priceedings' read 'proceedings'

Page 95, line 17 from bottom, delete 'by'

CONTENTS

	PAGE									
1. Composition of the Joint Committee										
2. Report of the Joint Committee .										
3. Minutes of Dissent										
4. Bill as reported by the Joint Committee	1									
Appendix I :										
Motion in Lok Sabha for reference of the Bill to the Jo	int 7									
Appendix II:										
Motion in Rajya Sabha	. 8									
APPENDIX III:										
List of Associations, Organisations, Individuals etc. from whe memoranda/representations were received by the June Committee.										
APPENDIK IV :										
Minutes of the sittings of the Joint Committee.	. 17									

- 30. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 31. Shri Leonard Soliman Saring
- 32. Shri Lea Sezhiyan
- 33. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri H. G. Paranjpe-Joint Secretary.
- 2. Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.
- 3. Shri T. E. Jagannathan—Senter Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shri S. Ramaiah—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs (Legislative Department).
- 2. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs (Legislative Department).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh—Assistant Legislative Counsel, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs (Legislative Department).

DRAFTSMAN (OFFICIAL LANGUAGES WING)

Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs (Official Languages Wing).

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri P. K. Kathpalia—Additional Secretary.
- 2. Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

[†]Ceased to be a member of the Committee w. c. f. 19.10.1961 on the expiry of his term in Rajva S bha, Re-appointed w. c. f. 17.12.1961.

REPORT OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE ON THE CRIMINAL LAW (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1980

- I, the Chairman of the Joint Committee to which the Bill*, further to amend the Indian Penal Code, the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 and the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 was referred, having been authorised to submit the Report on their behalf, present their Report with the Bill, as amended by the Committee, annexed thereto.
- 2. The Bill was introduced in the Lok Sabha on the 12th August, 1980. The motion for reference of the Bill to a Joint Committee of the Houses was moved in the Lok Sabha by Giani Zail Singh, the then Minister of Home Affairs on the 23rd December, 1980 and was adopted. (Appendix I).
- 3. The Rajya Sabha concurred in the said motion on the 24th December, 1980 (Appendix II).
- 4. The message from Rajya Sabha was published in the Lok Sabha Bulletin—Part II on the 26th December, 1980.
 - 5. The Committee held 44 sittings in all.
- 6. The first sitting of the Committee was held on the 3rd February, 1981 to draw up their future programme of work. The Committee at this sitting decided to invite memoranda in the provisions of the Bill from the State Governments, Union Territory Administrations, Public Bodies, Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Associations/Councils, Press Organisations, individuals, etc. interested in the subject matter of the Bill by the 18th February, 1981 for their consideration with a view to facilitate the working of the Committee.

The Committee also decided to address a circular letter to the Chief Secretaries of all State Governments/Union Territory Administrations, Bar Associations/Councils, Press Organisations and Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Attorney General and Advocates General of all States inviting their comments/suggestions on the provisions of the Bill by the said date.

The Committee further decided to hear oral evidence on the provisions of the Bill from the interested parties including experts.

The Committee also decided to issue a Press Communique in this behalf fixing the 18th February. 1981 as the last date for receipt of memoranda and requests for giving oral evidence. On the 4th February. 1981, the Director General, All India Radio and the Director General, Doordarshan, New Delhi were also requested to broadcast the contents of the Press Communique from all stations of All India Radio and telecast it from all Doordarshan Kendras on three successive days.

^{*}Published in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Section 2 dated the 12th August, 1980.

- 7. As a few memoranda were received by the 18th February, 1981 and several requests for extension of time for submission of memoranda had been received by the Lok Sabha Secretariat, the Chairman on the 21st February, 1981 extended the date for receiving memoranda etc. up to the 7th March, 1981. This was notified through a Press Communique issued by the Lok Sabha Secretariat on the 23rd February, 1981. The contents of the Press Communique were also given publicity through All India Radio and Doordarshan Kendras.
- 8. As sufficient number of memoranda had not been received, especially from the Women's Organisations at National level by the aforesaid extended date, the Committee at their sititing held on the 17th March, 1981 decided to further extend the time for submision of memoranda up to the 15th April, 1981. A Press Communique was again issued on the 19th March, 1981. The Director General, All India Radio and the Director General, Doordarshan, New Delhi were again requested to broadcast the matter from all Stations of All India Radio and telecast it from all Doordarshan Kendras.

At that sitting, the Committee also decided that all Members of Parliament and the District Bar Associations in the country be requested to send their comments/suggestions on the provisions of the Bill by the extended date, i.e., the 15th April, 1981. Accordingly, Members of Parliament and the Presidents of all District Bar Associations in the country were requested to send their comments/suggestions by the aforesaid date.

- 9. 123 Memoranda Representations containing views comments suggestions on the provisions of the Bill were received by the Committee from various State Governments, Public Bodies, Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, etc. (Appendix III)
- 10. In order to acquaint themselves with the growing problem of rape eases and to ascertain the facts and figures of the incidence of such cases in different States, particularly from those who were not in a position to come to Delhi, the Committee at their sitting held on the 29th April, 1981 decided to visit different States and hold series of sittings there for the purpose of taking oral evidence of the representatives of various Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Councils/District Bar Associations. State Governments, etc.
- 11. Accordingly, the Committee held their formal sittings at Simla, Lucknow and Bhopal from the 30th June to the 7th July, 1981 in the first round; at Bombay, Hyderabad and Bangalore from the 27th July to the 2nd August, 1981 in the second round; and at Calcutta, Itanagar, Patna and Bhubaneswar from the 14th to the 23rd October, 1981 in the third round, and heard oral evidence of the representatives of various Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Councils/District Bar Associations, State Governments/Union Territory Administrations and individuals, etc.

The Committee also took oral evidence of the representatives of various Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations. Delhi Administration, individuals, etc. at New Delhi on the 2nd and 3rd November, 1981.

- 12. 225 witnesses representing both officials and non-officials, vis., Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Councils/Associations, other organisations, individuals, etc. from a cross section of the society appeared before the Committee for tendering oral evidence.
- 13. At their sittings held from the 16th to 18th November, 1981 and again from the 8th to 11th February, 1982, the Committee held general discussion on the provisions of the Bill with reference to the amendments given notice of, and general suggestions made, by the members with a view to formulate their views and arrive at a consensus. During the general discussion, it was suggested by some members of the Committee that as to whether the Minister of State for Home Affairs was prepared to bring forward any Government amendments based on the views expressed by them during the discussion. Accordingly, the Minister of State for Home Affairs expressed his willingness to bring forward Government amendments for consideration of the Committee.
- 14. At their sitting held on the 8th February, 1982, the Committee decided that the Record of Evidence tendered before the Committee at New Delhi and other places might be printed and laid on the Table of both the Houses of Parliament.
- 15. The Report of the Committee was to be presented to the House by the last day of the first week of the next Session (Budget Session, 1981), i.e. by the 20th February, 1981. The Committee were granted five extensions for presentation of the Report—first on the 19th February, 1981 up to the last day of the first week of the Sixth Session, i.e. the 21st August, 1981, the second on the 20th August, 1981 up to the last day of the first week of the Winter Session, 1981, i.e. the 27th November, 1981; the third on the 27th November, 1981 up to the last day of the first week of the Budget Session, 1982, i.e. the 19th February, 1982 the fourth on the 19th February, 1982 up to the last day of the penultimate week of the Monsoon Session, 1982, i.e. the 7th August 1982, and the fifth on the 5th August, 1982 up to the first day of the last week of the Winter Session, 1982, i.e. the 2nd November, 1982.
- 16. After receipt of the Government amendments, the Chairman requested the members to give notices of fresh amendments in the light of the Government amendments, if they so desired.

The Committee considered the Bill clause-by-clause vis-a-vis Governernment amendments and fresh amendments, etc., given notice of and moved by Members, at their sittings held on the 8th, 11th, 12th and 13th October, 1982.

- 17. At their sitting held on the 13th October, 1982, the Committee decided that two sets of memoranda/representations, etc. containing comments/suggestions on the Bill received by the Committee might be placed in the Parliament Library, after the Report had been presented, for reference by the Members of Parliament.
- 18. The Committee considered and adopted the Report at their sitting held on the 23rd October, 1982.
- 19. The observations of the Committee with regard to the principal changes proposed in the Bill are detailed in the succeeding paragraphs.
- 20. Clause 2.—The Committee have made certain amendments in this clause as explained below:

- (i) The Committee note that under the provisions of sub-section
 (1) of the proposed new section 228A, the disclosure of the identity of the victim of certain offences, namely, assault on a woman with intent to outrage her modesty under section 354 and sexual offences, namely, rape and illicit sexual intercourse under the proposed new sections 376, 376A, 376B and 376C have been made punishable with a minimum imprisonment of one month extendable to two years and also with fine. The Committee feel that since the proposed legislation mainly deals with rape and illicit sexual intercourse, the offence under section 354, which is a minor offence and not so grave and serious as the offence of rape, need not be brought within its purview.
- (ii) The Committee also note that the provisions contained in sub-section (1) of the proposed new section 228A provide for a minimum punishment of one month and the proviso thereof further empowers the court to impose a sentence of imprisonment for a term less than one month. The Committee . find that these provisions are not in conformity with the provisions contained in section 354(4) of Cr.P.C. which provide that if the court imposes a sentence of imprisonment for a term less than three months, where the offence is punishable with imprisonment for one year or more, it shall record its reasons for awarding such a sentence, unless the sentence is of imprisonment till the rising of the court. The Committee are of the view that since the offence under sub-section (1) of the proposed new section 228A is punishable with imprisonment, which may extend to two years and fine, the court is bound to award a sentence of at least three months instead of the minimum of one month provided therein subject to the reasons to be recorded. The only exception under section 354(4) is the sentence till the rising of the court. But even under the proviso to sub-section (1) of the proposed new section 228A, the court, after recording special reasons, can award a sentence till the rising of the court. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the proposed provisions relating to a minimum punishment of one month and the proviso empowering the court to impose a sentence of imprisonment for a lesser term than the minimum prescribed might be deleted.
 - Sub-section (1) of the proposed new section 228A, based on the suggestions made in parts (i) and (ii), has been amended accordingly.
- (iii) The Committee feel that the expression "by any enactment for the time being in force"—made in sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 228A—which prohibits the disclosure of identity of the victim of an offence specified in such enactment is not desirable as it is vague and it is also apprehended that such an enactment might not come within the scope of the proposed legislation.
- (iv) The Committee note that the provisions contained in subsection (2) of the proposed new section 228A completely ban

the disclosure of the identity of the victim of the offences under the proposed legislation which at times might go against the interests of the victim herself. In certain cases, the Committee feel, publicity may be necessary for proper investigation and bringing the offenders to book. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that if it is in the interests of the victim, for the purposes of investigation and in order to ensure that the offenders do not go scot-free, the police officer investigating into the offence should be permitted to allow the printing and publication of the name or any matter which may make known the identity of the victim in good faith. Similarly, if the victim so desires, and in case the victim is dead or is a minor or is of unsound mind and the next of kin of such victim so desires, the publication may be made with the authorisation in writing of the victim or the next of kin. However, in order to ensure that the authorisation given by the next of kin of the victim is not misused, it should be made obligatory that such authorisation should be given only to the Chairman or the Secretary of any Welfare Institution or Organisation recognized for the purpose by the central or State Government.

- Sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 228A, based on the suggestions made in parts (iii) and (iv), has been substituted by a new sub-section.
- (v) The Committee are also of the opinion that in order to protect the interests of the victim, printing or publication of any matter relating to any proceeding before a Court with respect to an offence referred to in sub-section (1) of the proposed new section 228A, without the permission of the court, should also be made punishable.
- A new sub-section (3) to the proposed new section 228A has been added accordingly.
- (vi) Clause (b) of sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 228A relating to prohibition for the disclosure of any matter in relation to a proceeding held in a court in camera has been shifted to clause 4 which seeks to amend section 327 of Cr. P.C. relating to accessibility into the court premises (Vide para 22 below)
- 21. Clause 3.—The Committee have made certain amendments in this clause as explained below:
 - (i) The Committee feel that the expression 'free and voluntary' proposed to be added in clause Secondly of the proposed new section 375 is likely to cause confusion and may, in fact, suggest that the consent is vitiated. The consent has always to be free and voluntary as otherwise it is no consent. The Committee are of the view that, in terms of the provisions contained in section 90 of the Indian Penal Code, which expressly spell out the circumstances in which the consent is to be considered vitiated, the insertion of the said expression

- is redundant. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the expression 'free and voluntary' should be omitted.
- (ii) The Committee note that the ambit of clause Thirdly of the proposed new section 375 has been made much wider than that of the existing one by inserting the words "or of any injury or by criminal intimidation as defined in section 503". The Committee feel that in the context of the offences relating to rape and illicit sexual intercourse to be dealt with in the proposed legislation, the addition of the expression "injury" is not necessary as it is already covered under section 90 of the Indian Penal Code. So far the expression "criminal intimidation" is concerned, it has been defined under section 503 of the Indian Penal Code which provides wider scope and as such it is not necessary. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the expression "or of any injury or criminal intimidation as defined in section 503" should be deleted. The Committee are also of the opinion that the description contained in clause Thirdly, should be extended only to cases in which the consent is obtained by putting the victim or any person in whom she is interested in fear of death or of hurt.
- (iii) The Committee note that the provisions regarding consent under a misconception of fact made in clause Fifthly of the proposed new section 375 are already covered by the provisions contained in section 90 of Indian Penal Code. The Committee feel that these provisions are, therefore, redundant and should be omitted.
- (iv) The Committee feel that a woman, by reason of unsoundness of mind or intoxication or under the influence of any stupefying or unwholesome substance, is not capable of offering any effective resistance. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the expression "or is unable to offer effective resistance" appearing in the description in clause Sixthly (new clause Fifthly) of the proposed new section 375 is not necessary and should, therefore, be omitted.
 - (v) The Committee feel that in a case where the husband and wife are living separately under a decree of judicial separation, there is a possibility of reconciliation between them until a decree of divorce is granted. Hence, the intercourse by the husband with his wife without her consent during such period should not be treated as, or equated with rape. Explanation 2 under the description of clause Seventhly (new clause Sixthly) of the proposed new section 375 has, therefore, been omitted.
 - The Committee are of the opinion that intercourse by the husband with his wife under such circumstances should be treated as illicit sexual intercourse and an independent provision for the purpose should be provided in the Bill [vide part (xiv) below].
 - (vi) The Committee feel that the punishment to the husband for having sexual intercourse with his wife, who is not under

twelve years of age, should not be equated with the punishment provided for the offence of rape but it should be a milder one. The Committee are of the opinion that the same punishment for such an offence, as has been provided under the existing provisions of the Code, namely imprisonment for a term which may extend to two years or with fine or with both, should be provided in the Bill.

Sub-section (1) of the proposed new section 376 has been amended accordingly.

(vii) The Committee feel that in view of the increasing incidents of rape offences committed by policemen by virtue of their position and authority, even though the Committee do not suspect that every policeman is a culprit, the provisions contained in clause (a) of sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 do not appear to be sufficient to cover all the areas to which their authority can extend. Besides, the expression "local area" used in this clause is quite vague. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that in order to ensure that all possible loop-holes are plugged so that the offenders do not escape punishment, any police officer, who commits rape within the limits of the police station to which he is appointed or in the premises of any station house or on a woman in his custody or in the custody of an officer subordinate to him, should be brought within the purview of the proposed clause.

Clause (a) of sub-section (2) has been amended accordingly.

(viii) The Committee feel that the provisions contained in clause (c) of sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 should not be confined only to the Superintendent or the Manager of a Jail, remand home or any other place of custody. The Committee apprehend that any person on the management or on the staff of such institution can take advantage of his Official position and might commit a rape on any inmate of such institution. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the scope of the provisions of clause (c) of Sub-section (2) should be extended to cover all persons on the management or on the staff of the institution.

Clause (c) of sub-section (2) has been amended accordingly.

(ix) The Committee note that the provisions contained in clause (d) of sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 have been extended to cover any person 'concerned with the management of the hospital' and confined only to women receiving treatment in that hospital. The Committee apprehend that the expression 'concerned with the management' might also cover those persons, who have no knowledge about the woman visiting a particular hospital, which is not desirable. The Committee feel that the scope of the proposed provisions should be extended only to those persons who are on the management or on the staff of the hospital The

Committee also feel that the scope of the proposed provision should not only be confined to rape cases of a woman receiving the treatment but should be extended to cover the cases of rape of any woman in that hospital who might either be a casual visitor or might be attending to a patient in the hospital.

The existing clause (c) of sub-section (2) has been substituted by a new clause accordingly.

(x) The Committee are of the opinion that in view of the increasing incidents of rape committed on minors, which is otherwise a heinous crime, any person, who commits a rape on a woman, who is under twelve years of age, should also be subjected to rigorous punishment.

A new clause (f) to sub-section (2) has been added accordingly.

(xi) The Committee note that in Explanation 1 to sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376, "gang rape" has been defined as rape committed by three or more persons acting in furtherance of their common intention. The Committee feel that in a "gang rape" if one commits rape, all the other persons involved should be held responsible and be equally punished. As the number of persons is kept as "three or more persons" and if only one person commits rape, no other person will be covered. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that "gang rape" should be defined as "rape committed by one or more in a group of persons".

Explanation 1 to sub-section (2) has been amended accordingly.

- (xii) Explanation 2 to sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 has been omitted consequent upon the amendment made in clause (c) of the said sub-section.
- (xiii) The Committee note that in the original Bill, the definition of the term "Hospital" had not been given under clause (d) of sub-section (2) but was provided under new section 376C (now section 376D). The Committee feel that the definition of the term "Hospital" should be brought under clause (d) of sub-section (2) as Explanation 3 and its scope should be widened to cover cases of rape committed within the precincts of the Hospital as well as any other institution giving medical treatment.
- A new Explanation 3 to sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 has been added accordingly.
- (xiv) As already explained in part (v) above, the Committee feel that the sexual intercourse by husband with his wife without her consent, who is living separately under a decree of separation but has not ceased to be his wife, should not be equated with the offence of rape and the husband should be subjected to a milder punishment,
 - A new section 376A has accordingly been inserted in clause 3 of the Bill.

- (xv) The Committee feel that the expression "takes undue advantage of his official position" used in the proposed new section 376A (now re-numbered as section 376B) might create complications and also might give room to controversy as to what constitutes "due advantage" as against "undue advantage". The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the expression "undue" should be omitted.
 - The Committee further note that the term "seduces" occurring in this section may give some loop-hole for the accused to escape. The Committee feel that in order to curb the probable escape, the word "induces or' should be added before the word "seduces".
 - Proposed section 376A (now re-numbered as section 376B) has been amended accordingly.
- (xvi) The Committee feel that the Superintendent or Manager of a Jail or remand home, by virtue of his authority and control over the inmates is likely to take advantage of his position in inducing or seducing the inmates for illicit sexual intercourse not amounting to rape. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that the provisions of the section 376B (now renumbered as section 376C) should be confined to them only. The section has been amended accordingly.
 - The Committee are further of the opinion that in case any person holding any other office in such institution, by virtue of which he can exercise any authority or control over its inmates and commits such offence, should also be subjected to same punishment. Explanation 1 to this section has been added accordingly.
- (xvii) The amendments made in the proposed new section 376C (now re-numbered as section 376D) are of consequential and clarificatory nature.
 - Clause 3 has been amended accordingly. The other amendments made in this clause are either of consequential, clarificatory or drafting nature.
- 22. Clause 4.—The Committee feel that all the allied offences proposed to be tried in camera are not of a serious nature and as such the in camera trial should be restricted only to cases of rape and illicit sexual intercourse with a view to provide facility of free atmosphere to expose secrecy. Hence, the in camera trial should cover offences falling under clause 3.

The Committee feel that although the proceedings of the court for trial of offences relating to rape and illicit sexual intercourse under the proposed new sections of the Indian Penal Code under clause 3 of the Bill are to be conducted in camera, it might become necessary at times, under certain circumstances, to allow any particular person to be present in the Court. The Committee are, therefore, of the view that the Presiding Judge should be given discretion to allow any particular person to be present in the court on application made by either of the parties.

Necessary amendments have been made in this clause accordingly and the other amendments made therein are of consequential nature.

23. Clauses 5 and 6.—The Committee feel that in view of the provisions for summary trial already made in section 350 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, there is no necessity for an express provision being made in the Bill providing for summary trail of an offence for printing or publishing the proceedings held in Camera. Clause 5 of the Bill has, therefore, been omitted.

Similarly, Clause 6 of the Bill, which is of a consequential nature, has also been omitted.

24. Clause 5 (original clause 7).—The Committee feel that the offence under the proposed new section 228A relating to disclosure of the identity of the victim of certain offences is not of such a serious nature as to make it non-bailable, as proposed and should, therefore, be classified as bailable.

The Committee are also of the opinion that offences relating to intercourse by a husband with his wife, not being under twelve years of age, under new section 376, and intercourse by a husband with his wife without consent during separation under new section 376A, should be made non-cognizable, bailable and triable by the Court of Session.

The Committee are further of the opinion that offences under the proposed new sections 376B, 376C and 376D should be made bailable and triable by the Court of Session. The Committee also feel that in order to avoid any misuse of these provisions under which the offences have been classified as cognizable, no arrest should be made without a warrant or without an order of the Magistrate.

Entries in the proposed new Schedule have been amended accordingly. The other amendments made in this clause are of consequential nature.

25. Clause 6 (original Clause 8).—(i) The Committee note that by this clause a new section 111A, providing for presumption as to absence of consent in certain prosecutions for rape, is proposed to be inserted in the Indian Evidence Act. 1872. The Committee feel that the appropriate place for the insertion of such a provision in the Indian Evidence Act would be after section 114 which provides for presumption of existence of certain facts in the prosecution of a particular case.

Proposed new section 111A has accordingly been proposed to be placed after section 114 and has been re-numbered as section 114A.

(ii) The Committee also note that clause (e) of sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 relating to rape on a pregnant woman has been excluded from the purview of the proposed new section 114A (original section 111A). The Committee feel that in a prosecution for rape on a pregnant woman if it is proved that the woman is pregnant, the court should have no option except to presume that she did not consent. The Committee are, therefore of the opinion that clause (e) of sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 should also be brought within the purview of the proposed new section 114A.

(iii) The Committee apprehend that there is a possibility of the previsions made in the new section 114A (original section 111A) being misused unless in a prosecution for rape, it is proved that the sexual intercourse was by the accused only. The Committee are, therefore, of the view that in a prosecution for rape under sub-section (2) of the proposed new section 376 of the Indian Penal Code it should be made obligatory to prove that the intercourse was by the accused so that innocent persons are not falsely implicated.

The clause has been amended accordingly. The other amendment made in this clause is of a consequential nature.

- 26. Clause 1.—The amendment made in this clause is of a formal nature.
- 27. Enacting Formula.—The amendment made in the Enacting Formula is of a formal nature.
- 28. The Joint Committee recommend that the Bill, as amended, 'be passed.

General Recommendations

- 29. With a view to ascertain the views of the Cross-section of the Society on the provisions of the Criminal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1960 vis-a-vis the ever increasing incidents of rape and allied offences being committed on women, the Joint Committee invited suggestions from State Governments and non-official bodies. A large number of memoranda containing comments/suggestions were received by them. They also visited several places throughout the country. During the course of their visits, the Committee had formal discussions with both officials of State Governments and non-officials comprising the representatives of various Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Councils, Bar Associations, individuals, etc.
- 30. During the course of their deliberations and examination of the Bill, under their consideration, the Committee were informed that apart from the rape and other sexual offences committed on women, there were other atrocities being committed on them for which there was inadequacy of law to protect them. In fact, apart from inadequacy of law, most women in our society are unable to muster enough physical strength themselves to offer effective resistance and are ill-equipped on account of biological inequality, to repel an attempt at such offences/atrocities even in self-defence. The consequences of these offences/atrocities on the victims have adverse psychological, physical and social effects. Various suggestions were offered to the Committee to deal with such offences/atrocities.
- 31. The Committee, after examining the provisions of the Bill vis-avis the suggestions/comments received, feel that although the provisions contained therein are insufficient to deal with all such offences/atrocities, to suggest comprehensive changes would not strictly fall within the scope of the proposed legislation. However, considering the importance and urgency of the subject-matter and keeping in view the welfare of the women-folk and to safeguard their legitimate interests,

the Committee have decided to make certain general recommendations for consideration of the Government apart from the amendments suggested in the Bill.

32. The General recommendations have been made in two parts—first part contains recommendations for amendment of the Indian Penal Code and the second part contains recommendations made for amendment of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973. The Committee recommend that the Government might consider the feasibility of regulating the following matters either by amending the existing legislations or by processing suitable legislations, if necessary.

PART-I

(Amendments suggested to the Indian Penal Code)

- I. Right of private defence to a woman on molestation
- 33. The Committee note with great concern that in the recent past there has been an increase in the molestation, harassment, etc. of women and the culprits, despite the existence of the Criminal Law, escape punishment. The Committee feel that outraging the modesty of a woman is a most cruel offence and need to be dealt with severely. The Committee are of the opinion that the offence of molestation might be equated with rape and brought within the purview of Section 100 of the Indian Penal Code relating to the right of private defence of the body extending to causing death.
- II. Punishment for rape on a physically and mentally disabled women
- 34. The Committee are of the opinion that whoever commits a rape on the woman, who is completely helpless to defend herself on account of unsound mind, blindness, deafness, dumbness or is physically or mentally disabled, should be subjected to deterrent punishment. The Committee feel that a suitable provision to this effect might be inserted in Sub-section (2) of the proposed new Section 376.
- III. Punishment for rape on a woman under economic dominance.
- 35. The Committee were informed that there have been innumerable cases, both in rural and urban areas, of the women being raped under economic domination, influence, control and authority of employers both in private and public sectors as well as under the employment of an individual. The Committee feel that such offences committed whether directly or indirectly by the employers should also be subjected to rigorous punishment and might be brought within the purview of the proposed new Section 376 of the Indian Penal Code.

PART-II

(Amendments suggested to the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973)

- IV. Women not to be arrested after sunset or before sunrise.
- 36. The Committee, during the course of their visits to various places in the country, were informed by the representatives of various Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations that on account of increasing incidents of offences being committed on women by the Police, whenever a

woman is arrested or called for interrogation at the police station or is detained therein, she feels insecure and always apprehends that the police will subject her to harassment and may even commit sexual offence on her.

- 37. The Committee feel that no woman, except in unavoidable circumstances, should be arrested after sunset and before sunrise. However, where such unavoidable circumstances exist, the police officer must, by making a written report, obtain the prior permission of his superior officer or if the case is one of urgency, he must, after making the arrest, report the matter in writing to his immediate superior officer without delay with reasons for arrest and also reasons for not taking prior permission.
- 38. The Committee are in complete agreement with similar recommendations made by the Law Commission in para 3.7 of their 84th Report and recommend that a suitable provision incorporating the above suggestions might be inserted in Section 46 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

V. Medical Examination of a man accused of rape

- 39. The Committee were informed that even though a person accused for an offence of rape or other sexual offences is subjected to medical examination but it is generally seen that the medical examination is done in a cursory way and the report thereof is also not received in time. As a result, in several cases the prosecution fails and the accused person escapes punishment.
- 40. The Committee feel that when a person accused of rape or an attempt to commit rape is arrested and an examination of his person is to be made, he should be sent without delay to the registered and qualified medical practitioner. Such medical practitioner should without delay examine such person and prepare a report recording the result of his examination with reasons for each conclusion arrived at and indicating complete particulars of the accused including marks of injury, if any, and chemical examination of semen or blood and/or its stains on the body or clothes of the person wherever possible. The medical report should also indicate the time of commencement and completion of the examination and the medical practitioner should without delay send the report to the investigating officer who should in turn forward the same to the Magistrate.
- 41. The Committee are of the opinion that as recommended by the Law Commission in para 4.7 of their 84th Report, an independent section 53A incorporating the above suggestions might be inserted in the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

VI. Medical examination of a rape victim

42. The Committee were informed that in many cases apart from the usual delay, the medical report of a rape victim is also found to have been done in a cursory way and lacking in material particulars which are necessary for the successful prosecution of the case. The Committee feel that during the investigation, when a woman with whom rape is alleged to have been committed or attempted, it is proposed to get her

medically examined, such examination should be conducted by a registered and qualified medical practitioner with the consent of woman or or some person competent to give such consent on her behalf and she should be sent to such medical practitioner without delay. Such medical practitioner should without delay examine her and prepare a report indicating all the particulars mentioned in para 40 above including general mental condition of the woman and whether the victim was previously used to sexual intercourse. Apart from other particulars required to be furnished in the Report, it should also specifically record that the consent of woman or some person competent to give such consent on her behalf to such examination had been obtained.

- 43. The Committee are in agreement with the recommendations made by the Law Commission in para 4.10 of their 84th Report and recommend that an independent Section 164A incorporating the above suggestions might be inserted in the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.
- VII. Association of Social Welfare Officer in the investigation of offences against women and children
- 44. The Committee are of the view that in order to ensure that cases relating to offences against women and children are investigated properly, it should be made obligatory on the part of any police officer investigating the case to associate a social welfare officer or any representative of a recognised social welfare organisation of the area with such investigations.
- 45. The Committee recommend that suitable provisions incorporating the above suggestions might be inserted as section 173A of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

VIII. Compensation to a rape victim

- 46. The Committee were informed that once it is known or proved that a particular woman has been raped, there are practically no chances of her being accepted by her family members or close relatives. In fact, the Committee feel, our society has not yet risen to that pedestal where the victims of rape, molestation, etc. are looked upon with sympathy and are given due sympathy, dignity and honour. As a result, in some cases such unfortunate victims of rape or other sexual offences become insane or commit suicide or become prostitutes against their will. The Committee are of the opinion that such victims should be awarded compensation sufficient enough to rehabilitate themselves in life.
- 47. The Committee recommend that suitable provisions incorporating the above suggestions might be inserted in section 357 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

IX. Custody and detention of a woman on arrest

48. As already explained in para 36 above, when a woman is arrested and detained in a police station for interrogation, she feels insecure and has an apprehension of being harassed and even being raped by the police. The increasing incidents of such cases in the recent past are further strengthening the apprehension in the minds of such persons. There is, therefore, the need for elimination of their feeling of appre-

hension and of giving adequate protection against police misdeeds to women.

- 49. The Committee are, therefore, of the opinion that when a woman is arrested and there are no suitable arrangements for keeping her in custody in a place of detention exclusively meant for women, she should be sent to an institution maintained for the care, protection and welfare of children—licensed under the Women's and Children's Institutions (Licensing) Act 1956 or an institution recognised by the Central and the State Governments except in cases where she is required to be sent to a protective home or other place of detention authorised for the purpose under some special law.
- 50. The Committee recommend that an independent section 417B incorporating the above suggestions might be inserted in the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

CONCLUSION

51. The Committee feel that till such time suitable legislations, based on the suggestions made above, are processed/enacted, the Government might consider the feasibility of issuing executive instructions to achieve the objectives.

New Delhi;
October 30, 1982
Kartika 3, 1904 (Saka).

D. K. NAIKAR, Chairman, Joint Committee

MINUTES OF DISSENT

1

The Bill as reported contains certain provisions which will not be in the interest of fair trial and also to prevent such social offences like rape etc. in the present circumstances of our country where number of cases of gang rape and custodial rape are occurring. In my opinion, clause 2 of the Bill will not be conducive for the solution of the problem. This clause which makes printing and publishing the name or any matter which may make known the identity of the victim is vague and too wide and does not create the criminal liability strictly. Any matter connected with identity will give rise to different interpretations by various courts. It is likely to be misused also when publishing of any news will bring the journalists or the management of newspapers within the purview of the clause. It amounts, in fact, to blanket prohibition of publicity. It is undesirable and really contemplates criminalisation of public discussion and protest concerning rape and allied offences or of Indian women in general. Hereafter, the press will not dare to publish any news in such matters and take risk of committing an offence punishable with two years imprisonment. It is bound to facilitate persons in power, especially the custodians of offences and would assist the economically and politically more powerful people by this ban on public discussion. This will also be hinderance in the way of persons and public spirited citizens who wish to mobilise public opinion against default and investigation. Due to public protest and the campaign by the leading newspapers demanding strict penalties and action in such matters that the Government was required to bring this Bill and it appointed a Joint Committee to consider the subject from all aspects.

- 2. The change in the law should be to punish the criminals with deterrent punishment. But it is just the opposite. The very instrumentality which necessitated the re-examination of the law concerning rape is being punished under this law. Public participation in administration of criminal justice is healthy and conducive to equitable justice. This clause is counter productive. It is therefore desirable to leave the matter to the good sense of profession of journalism, existing law and Press Council. Any interference in the freedom of press and expression will be negation of democratic way of life. Freedom and liberty of individual is the very foundation of democracy. Any tetter or restriction on the freedom of press should be looked with caution and only in exceptional circumstances. Even from the point of view of justice to be given to victims of rape and social crimes, the restriction will not help the cause and advance the remedy. Some persons and organisations have given evidence in this regard before the Committee.
- 3. Section 228A of the I.P.C. provides a punishment of two years and also unlimited fine to journalists or the managements of newspapers. They are being treated like ordinary criminals under Section 354, sub-

٠,

- clause (4) of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973. It is provided that when the conviction is for an offence punishable with imprisonment for a term of one year or more but the Code imposes sentence of imprisonment for a term of less than three months, it shall record its reasons for awarding such sentence unless the sentence is of one of the imprisonment till the rising of the court. No court will take responsibility for giving reasons for a sentence of less than three months and, therefore, punishment under Section 228A, sub-clause (1) and subclause (3) will be minimum three months. In view of this legal provision, nobody will take risk of publishing the news of such offences and it will be difficult to find out the real culprits and punish the guilty in the absence of any news being published. There is no cogent reason for prohibiting the publicity at the investigation stage or making it punishable offence.
- 4. Under Clause 4 of the Bill, it has been provided that for such offences trial shall be conducted in camera. In the absence of any law the breach of clause 4 of publishing the proceedings in a trial in camera will be a contempt of court. Further, if the punishment is to be provided under this Bill itself for breach of clause 4, then the stringent penal provisions are not desirable. Even the Law Commission of India in its 84th Report has recommended only a fine up to Rs. 1,000 and has stated in the proposed Section 228A that there should be enactment which should make the publication in a court of law to be unlawful and penalty should be fine and not jail sentence.
- 5. I, therefore, suggest that section 228A, sub-section (1) be deleted and substituted by the following:
 - "228A(1). Whoever prints or publishes the name of any person against whom an offence under section 376, section 376A, section 376B, section 376C or section 376D is found to have been committed during the trial and when such printing and publication is not made in good faith or for public interest, shall be punished with a fine up to Rs. 1,000."

Section 228A, sub-section (2) be deleted. The explanation to section 228A and sub-section (3) be deleted and substituted by the following by re-numbering 228A(3) as 228A(2):

"228A(2). Whoever prints or publishes any matter in relation to any proceeding held in a court in camera with respect to an offence referred to in sub-section (1) without the previous permission of such court shall be punished with a fine up to Rs. 1,000."

Explanation:

- "The printing or publication of the judgement of any court, including High Court and Supreme Court, does not amount to an offence within the meaning of this section".
- 6. As the law stands today, the names and the details of the victims as well as the accused can be published in the press unless the proceedings are held in camera. This is in view of the general rule about the reporting of judicial proceedings. It is a cardinal principle of criminal jurisprudence that trial shall be open. That is what is provided in

Section 327 of the Criminal Procedure Code. This is also made clear in the Supreme Court judgement in Naresh Vs. State of Maharashtra A.I.R. 1976 SC P.1 that only when the public is excluded from the audience, the privilege of publication also goes. It is well known dictum of law that "where secrecy begins justice ends." But in special circumstances and to avoid embarrassment from the glare of publicity, it is accepted proposition that the restriction on reporting of judicial proceedings can be made but such restrictions can only be imposed in very special circumstances. It is accepted fact that stigma attached to rape mars the future. Therefore, proceedings in camera should be held only when the victim so desires and, therefore, I suggest that clause 4 adding sub-section (2) should be re-worded and the following be added at the end of sub-section (2) before the proviso:

"If the victim so desires, having made an application in writing in this regard."

- 7. Gang rape is a very serious offence and requires a deterrent punishment. It cannot be classified with other offences as is done in sub-section (2), under new section 376. In my opinion, ends of justice can only be met by providing death sentence or imprisonment for life and also liability for fine as is provided under section 302 I.P.C. for committing murder. Punishment provided in the proposed amendment is not adequate.
- 8. Before I conclude, I would like to mention that incidents of rape of minors are increasing in the last three years, particularly in the Union Territory of Delhi. It is our experience that criminal trial of these offences do not get priority. It is not sufficient merely that law is good. But there must be good enforcement machinery. It is essential, therefore, to have proper and speedy investigation in such cases and also adequate machinery to have expeditious disposal of cases. The Government should immediately take steps for the same directing the judiciary to have special courts for trial of such cases. Unless the culprits are tried expeditiously and deterrent punishment is given, this social offence will not be checked. Law, at present, is looked with immunity by such persons and inordinate delays in trials are making a mockery of justice.
- 9. With the above observations and this my note of dissent, I generally agree with the recommendations made by the Committee in other respects.

S. W. DHABE

NEW DELHI;
October 25, 1982
Kartika 3, 1904 (Saka).

} '

Ħ

Though I am agreeing with major recommendations of the Committee, I beg to differ in the following matters:

According to me, clause 2 of the Bill which seeks to insert section 228A of IPC should be deleted in toto.

This is a clause which provides for a bar on the disclosure of identity of the victim of certain offences, etc. The reasons stated are:

The publicity which mars the image of the victim of rape, makes further difficult her proper absorption in the society. She faces a sort of social boycott apart from her mental shock and agony.

Makes the investigation of the offence difficult.

With due respect, I beg to submit that none of the above two grounds stand to my reasoning. It is very unfortunate that a victim of rape, who should get sympathy from society gets a condemnation. Everybody knows that it was none of the victim's fault for the mishappening, but the old illogical conceptions of the society, deter the absorption of the victim in an hon'ble way into the society. But the question remains whether this hardship by the victim is experienced because of the publicity in the newspapers or otherwise, due to the incident of rape itself. When a rape takes place it hardly remains a secret so far as the family, the relatives and the small section of society is concerned. And it is this society which is not ready to accept her, whether there be a publicity in newspapers or not. Actually what is needed is the change in the thinking of the society. It will come only if an atmosphere of that type is created.

It will not be out of point to consider, as to what provoked the present legislation. It was the continuous occurrence of several rape cases against which so many women organisations and other social organisations raised voice so many newspapers also raised the issue and wide publicity of Mathura's case was one of the very important aspect. If this sort of publicity were not there, I am afraid there would not have been a pressure on the society and the legislature to bring an amendment of this type. Even the Houses of Parliament could not tolerate and rightely so, the delay caused in submitting the report of the Joint Committee.

Secondly the alleged difficulty in investigation also is far from the point. Actually it is the lethargy and carelessness on the part of the investigation officers which gives opportunity to the accused to escape. In fact the publicity brings pressure upon the machinery resulting in early and careful investigation.

Thirdly this is a departure from the report of the Law Commission. It has not proposed such sort of amending provision in its report. Therefore I strongly feel that the insertion of section 228A in the present form will hurt the cause instead of giving any relief and as such it should be deleted.

By this amending Bill three Acts namely Criminal Procedure Code, Indian Panel Code and Indian Evidence Act are being amended and I think, that is right but while doing so certain procedural matters are of importance. I feel that the immediate medical examination of both the victim as well as of accused must get legal sanction. The importance of colour photography, emphasised by Law Commission is also very valid. It is high time we should adopt these matters.

Again there are two basic points on which I would like to submit my views. The concept of rape upon one's own wife is rather foreign to our country. It may be improper that husband forces sexual inter-course upon his wife who is less than 12 years of age, but why this situation has

arisen? The law though prohibits child marriages, the Indian society has not fully adopted to the law and as yet not thousand but lakhs of such marriages are taking place. It may be that such cases may be very negligible and the number may not be registered but such provision seems to be unwarranted in the present circumstances.

By providing section 114A, a departure has been made from the general rule of evidence. The original idea was that in cases of custodial rape, a presumption should be made, that is, if a victim says that she has not consented to the sexual intercourse, the burden of proving otherwise will be upon the accused. This (presumption) has extended to a case where a woman is pregnant and an offence is committed, so it will be coming to consider that a woman who has become pregnant is aver to a sex act, and physiologically also there is no hindrance in a sex act, the medical science and the modern social thinking and the psychology of sex has established that there is nothing wrong in having a sex by a pregnant woman at least upto the first four-five months of her pregnancy. Therefore to put this sort of rape in the same category as that of the custodial rape, that is the cases, which are covered under section 376 further sub-section 2(a), (b), (c) and (d) will not be proper, and I feel that from the section 114A's ambit it should be taken away. Similarly a rethinking of the definition of rape i.e. section 375 of IPC also seems necessary. Particularly I want to draw the attention towards the part 'Sixthly' of the definition which says "with or without her consent" when she is 16 years of age. The reasoning is that the woman who is less than 16 years though gives her consent to sexual intercourse cannot be said to understand the implications of it and the effects of it. It may be that certain implications may not be realised by the woman and that may be in the case of even of an elderly lady but is it not a fact that in the modern society the knowledge of sex is available to boys and girls who just enter their teens. I do not have any study made of Indian boys and girls who are in the age group of between 13 and 16 and above regarding their sex experiences, while such figures are available in USA of their teen-aged youth and there the girls of 14-15 or those who have not completed 16 have quite a good sex experience. Some of them can be said to be past masters. It is a point to be reconsidered whether in this background consent of a girl who has full experience and knows the enjoyment of sex, willingly has a sexual intercourse with a man, the man should always be condemned. A study of this subject is needed and I think an amendment of this clause based on that study will be in conformity with the change in our society. The Committee has made certain general recommendations which means that it further wants certain amendments in the Bill but because of the propriety in such amendment being made in the present amending Bill, those are not adopted. However, it is evident that they are the points to be taken care of as early as possible and as such, I must confess that the objects which the Committee have achieved are not total.

New Delhi; October 26, 1982 Karteika 4, 1904 (Saka), N. K. SHEJWALKAR

The Criminal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1980, as introduced in Parliament, betrayed clear marks of hasty and slipshod drafting. At the hands of the Joint Select Committee, the Bill has undergone considerable chiselling and refinement. It may not have become flawless; but it has to be accepted now as a well considered piece of legislation. Even so, there are some aspects of the majorty report with which we are unable to agree. Hence, this minute of dissent.

Our first and foremost reservation is with regard to clause 2 of the Bill, which prohibits the publication of "any matter which may make known the identity" of the rape victim. The clause is well-intentioned, but its principal result would be that the press would become severely constrained in so far as reporting of rape cases goes. It is not just the publication of the victim's name that is embargoed, but 'any matter' which could possibly point towards the victim. We feel that this sweeping embargo would make most pressmen hesitant about reporting rape cases.

Let it not be forgotten that this Bill itself is the result of a sustained press exposure of rape cases, particularly cases that took place inside police stations. Indeed, if this clause had been on the statute—book earlier it is quite likely there would have been no such press coverage of the rape cases, no consequential public outcry for strengthening of the rape laws, and so, this Bill itself may not have been born. We may also point out that even without this statutory provision, pressmen, by and large, have been voluntarily avoiding mentioning names of rape victim.

When the Law Commission considered this matter, they felt that while at the trial stage reporting of proceedings should be statutorily porhibited by providing for a trial in camera, the manner in which a rape case should be reported at the investigation stage should be left "to the good sense of the journalistic profession, and to such provisions of the existing law as may be applicable". We fully endorse this view.

Clause 3 of the Bill deals with Section 375 of the Indian Penal Code, which defines 'Rape'. The amendments suggested by the Joint Select Committee take care of most shortcomings. But the Exception to section 375 reads: "Sexual intercourse by a man with his own wife, the wife not being under fifteen years of age, is not rape." This means that if the wife is less than fifteen years of age, the husband (who too may be just 15 or 16 years) is guilty of rape if he cohabits with her.

Child marriage is a widely prevalent social evil, and one with regard to which statutory sanctions are certainly called for. But these sanctions must necessarily be of a different nature. Extremely reprehensible though child marriage is, it surely cannot be put in the same category as rape. Besides, the real culprits in the matter of child marriages are not the bride or bridgroom but their parents. We, therefore, favour an unqualified exception saying that "sexual intercourse by a man with his own wife is not rape."

A key provision of the Bill is the new section 114A added to the Evidence Act. This provides for a presumption about absence of consent on the part of the prosecutrix in certain specific cases of rape. The Joint Select Committee has inserted the words "by the accused" in the

original draft. It has now to be proved that sexual intercourse was by the accused only. We have a slight doubt whether this addition would not give an unintended and undeserved advantage to persons charged with gang rape in which irrespective of which individual actually committed the rape, all those who acted concertedly as a group towards that end are equally culpable.

Besides suggesting amendments to the Bill, the Joint Committee has made several general recommendations, which even where they do not fall strictly within the purview of the Bill have a great bearing on the capacity of law to deal effectively with offences against women.

Quite a few of these recommendations stem directly from the Eighty-fourth Report of the Law Commission relating to Rape and Related Offences. Some of these, e.g. Medical Examination of Accused, and of Woman Victim, pertain exclusively to Rape. We feel, therefore, that these should have been incorporated in this Bill itself and should not have been left for subsequent legislation. Of course, follow-up legislation would be necessary in respect of matters of a general nature, such as right to self-defence in case of molestation, women not being arrested after sunset and before sunrise, custody and detention of women on arrest etc. Some of the other recommendations, such as, one relating to rape on a women under "economic dominance" are vague, and cannot be easily translated into law.

NEW DELHI;

LAL K. ADVANI

October 27, 1982

Kartika 5, 1904 (Saka).

IV

A. Section 228A of the Indian Penal Code:

The entire section 228A has to be reconstituted/reconstructed/amended in view of the following reasons:—

- (i) The bar as to the disclosure of identity has been imposed so far accused is concerned and not with regard to the women. The privilege is sought to be extended to the accused putting the woman/the molested woman to the great hazards of her social existence.
- (ii) Controlled and restricted publicity is envisaged with regard to the accused but the molested woman has been put to open publicity subject to permission (but such permission sounds untenable).
- (iii) The concept of the bar as referred to runs contradictory and discriminatory.
- (iv) The bar has been imposed on the press to the jeopardy of their freedom and such bar is aimed to benefit the accused only, (though provision should not have been made beneficial to the culprit alone).
- (v) The proviso to section 228A (2) (e) read with Explanation' is not tenable insumuch as for being molested in future, a

woman has to be registered beforehand with a recognised welfare institution or organisation (though such organisation is not at all physically present in all corners and parts of the country).

- (vi) It has invited several prosecutions on alleged commission of offences under section 228A(1) & (3).
- (vii) These further prosecutions have made the entire concept of amendment cumbrous and frustrated since those go to frustrate the concept of punishment of the accused only.

So, I suggest that 228A should be deleted since it is redundant and partial.

B. Section 376(2) of the Indian Penal Code:

Person on the management or on the staff of a Nursing Home requires to be made a party to the punishment like Hospital, since Nursing Homes are growing like anything in our country.

So I suggest.

"Nursing Home" should be incorporated after the word "Hospital" wherever such word appears in the Amendment Bill.

C. Section 114A of the Evidence Act:

'The said amendment is to be deleted since there is every risk of got-up prosecution against a person.

So I am sending the above note of dissent and I hope that the Houses of Parliament will reconsider the proposed amendment of the Criminal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1980, inasmuch as the unfettered jurisdiction has been lent to the police personnel during investigation on the publicity issue.

CALCUTTA:

AMAR PROSAD CHAKRABORTY

October 24, 1982 Kartika 2, 1904 (Saka).

V

While we recognise the fact that compared to the earlier Bill (presented originally in the Lok Sabha) the present Criminal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1980 (as reported by the Joint Committee) is an improvement in many respects, we cannot fully agree with the Bill and the report. Hence, we submit the following note of dissent.

- 1. In clause 2 (page 1) of the Bill in the Section 228A(1) and at the end of this sub-clause we want two amendments to be inserted. Since these are self-explanatory we quote both:
 - (a) In the first line section 228 (1) (page 1) after the word "name" we want words "or any matter which may make known the identity" to be deleted.

(b) At the end of the sub-clause 228 (1) we want to add the following proviso:

"Provided that any publication made by newspapers or others with the object of bringing to light any case of rape or molestation of women, the investigation of which has been neglected or misdirected by the police or authorities and any complaint made to or any information lodged with the police and the authorities in relation to the offences under sections 354, 376, 376A, 376B, 376D, shall not constitute disclosure within the meaning of this section".

Every body knows from experience that for the last several years the publication in newspapers and agitations by women's and other organisations did play a big role in unveiling certain cases of rape particularly on poor women in far off places (like the recent Siswan incidents and many other incidents in the past). Without that probably even the cases would not be registered in certain places; it is particularly true when the allegations are against police personnel or certain other influential persons enjoying the backing of the local police.

The present Bill of course has relented from the earlier blanket ban on publication of "the name and any matter which may make known the identity" of the victim by providing among others that publication with written consent of the victim will not be punishable. Even then we think that written permission from the poor women in far off places may not be always practicable and in fact the publication itself may help these women.

It may be argued that in our society, the rape victims need some protection in regard to publicity because of the stigma attached to the victims of rape. While we do agree that some protection in this regard for general cases may be necessary that is why we are not averse to some restriction on publicity with regard to the name of the victim, but we feel that restriction extending upto "any matter which may make known the identity" will be too sweeping and it may in many cases scare away the newspapers from publishing even a case like that in Siswan, which will be counter productive. It will also handicap women's organisations in carrying out necessary activities. Noting that generally publicity is given or agitation conducted not in all cases, only in cases where the authorities concerned neglect the registration, investigation etc., we think that proviso proposed by us should be clearly stated in the Bill so that the rape victims may have avenue to justice.

We do not agree to the deletion of the Explanation 2 in the clause 3 of the old Bill. i.e. "A woman living seperately from her husband under a decree of judicial separation shall be deemed not to be his wife for the purposes of this section."

It may be argued that intercourse with the "wife" even if under judicial separation without consent should not be considered rape in the interest of possible reconcilliation. But we feel that firstly forcing the women is not the best method for reconcilliation, secondly it is frought with danger for the women because if these would lead to pregnancy due to that intercourse the woman would face great problem.

In clause 3 of the Bill under the new section 376(1) of the IPC sub-clause 2(a) (i), where the circumstances of rape by a police officer is being defined, though the present Bill is an improvement, even then we feel that it is inadequate. We want another sub-clause to be added saying "or in any area where he is known to be a policeman".

Our reason is that whoever would know (particularly poor and village women) that a particular person is a policeman would be likely to feel afraid of him which will place him in a position of domnation irrespective of whether she is in the circumstances described in the Bill.

We are highly concerned about the cases of rape perpetrated taking advantage of economic domination or power. This question has been partly dealt with in the general recommendation of the Joint Committee report (para 35). But we think that this Bill itself should have taken care of this problem and there was ample scope for that. We want that in the new section 376 (1) sub-section 2 of the IPC after "gang rape" another concept be added either through the words "(g) commits power rape" or through the words "(g) commits rape on a woman on whom she has economic domination directly or indirectly with an explanation later saying.

"Explanation 4.—Where a woman is raped under economic domination or influence or control or authority which includes domination by landlords, officials, management personnel, contractors, employers and money-lenders either by himself or by persons hired by him, each of the person shall be deemed to have committed power rape (or rape on the strength of economic dominance) within the meaning of this subsection".

We feel that in such cases, the guilty should undergo as heavy a punishment as in the cases of custodial rapes and gang rape. Moreover, in these cases the victim should also enjoy the benefit of the proposed new section 114A of IPC where presumption as to the absence of concept is given in favour of the victim. Both provisions were possible in the present Bill itself instead of leaving it to some future legislation. Moreover we note that the general recommendations regarding this (in the para 35 of the report) talks only of economic domination, influence, control and authority of only the "employer" and not of other categories mentioned above in our suggested Explanation 4 quoted above. Therefore, we feel that even the general recommendation of the report is in this respect inadequate.

About the provision of compulsory in camera' trial of the rape cases made in the Bill (clause 4) we want that it should be provided for "if desired by the victim". We feel that though generally the rape cases should be held in camera and that is in the interest of the victim, but there may be cases where publicity is needed for justice and for that reason that publicity would be in the interest of the victim in which case that scope should remain open.

About the necessity of association of a social welfare officer or any representative of a recognised social welfare organisation the Report in para 44 and para 45 (in the section under General Recommendations) has recommended that in future a new section 173A be inserted in Cr. PC. 1973. But we feel that the association of a social welfare officer, or any representative of a social welfare organisation of the area in the process of investigation, as well as the right of such organisations to prosecute simultaneously with the State; and in case police authorities do not think it necessary to prosecute, the right of such organisations to prosecute despite that should have been provided in this very Bill.

The Law Commission recommended and most of the women's organisations also maintained that the past sexual life of the victim should not be adduced in the evidence or questions relating to that should not be put in the cross-examination of the prosecutor in a trial of a rape case. There is scope for amending the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 to this effect by inserting a sub-section (3) in the section 146 of the said Act to this effect. This has found no place either in the Bill or in the General Recommendations made in the Report. This is essential for fair trial.

Last, but not the least, is the question of amending the Cr. P.C., 1973 with regard to the arrest and detention of women after sunset and sunrise, with regard to prompt and effective medical examination of the victim and the accused in rape cases and several other matters referred to by the Law Commission about the investigating stage in crimes against women and children are extremely urgent if the cases are to be successfully conducted. It is a pity that the entire investigative process has been left out of the purview of the present Birl. Some are now sought to be done through executive orders. In our opinion that is totally inadequate and are often violated. So the recommendations of the Law Commission pertaining to the investigation should have found a place in this Bill itself.

NEW DELHI;
October 28, 1982
Kartika 6, 1904 (Saka).

GEETA MUKHERJEE SUSEELA GOPALAN

VI

With reference to clause 2, Section 228A(1) which refers to disclosure of identity of the victim of certain offences etc. it may be noted that the punishment referred to which may extend upto 2 years is rather harsh and would amount to deliberate stiffling of the press. This Bill itself is the product of the sensational disclosure and continuous tirade made by the Press against such gruesome offences. Since a social change of attitude and protection to the weak and poor is necessary, inclusion of this would be detrimental for the very purpose of this Bill. But to protect the interests of the victim and the spirit with which this was included a mere fine should suffice our purpose.

In clause 3 after section 375 "exception" brings upon restriction of age for a man to have sexual intercourse with his own wife.

As the Hindu Marriage Act and other Marriage Laws which already exist, provide a minimum age for the marriage of both men and women. The remedy to this lies in the effective and proper implementation. Our existing Marriage Laws should be guided by the introduction of a uniform Civil Marriage Code. It is not proper to include this as this

pre-supposes that the existing Marriage Laws are being flagrantly violated and makes a mockery of the existing Marriage Laws. This exception may therefore, be excluded.

Section 376 (2) also refers to a similar lacuna which only exposes the hollowness of our existing laws, which are far from being implemented.

New Delhi; October 29, 1982 Kartika 7, 1904 (Saka). V. KISHORE CHANDRA S. DEO

VII

I regret that I am unable to support some of the clauses in the Bill as reported by the Joint Committee.

Clause 2 which creates the new section 228A is, in my opinion, unnecessary and productive of public mischief in several cases. Its wide phraseology would even cover the case of a further who complains of slack or corrupt investigation in the matter. This matter, in my opinion, ought to be left to rules of ethics to be evolved by the Press Council of India.

With reference to the proviso and explanation to clause 2, subclause 2(c), I am in disagreement because the provision suggested is impracticable and it is difficult to implement the same. It is well neigh impossible to set up recognised Welfare institutions throughout the country even at District Levels. I feel that unless it is possible to set up institutions at village level in the country it would not be possible to implement the provision and as such the object of this provision could not be achieved.

In clause 3 which introduces the new section 375, I am unable to subscribe to the wide scope of the fifth clause. Cases of self-induced intoxication ought to be excluded from this clause. In modern society and in even some backward societies where drink and other intoxicants are freely consumed, false charges of rape can easily be brought. In conceiveable cases it may be entirely difficult for the male to apprehend whether or not the female is unable to understand the nature and consequences of sexual intercourse. I am also unable to ascribe to eixthly in the same clause. In tropical countries, girls mature somewhat early. The Muslim religion permits marriage on puberty. To outlaw all sexual intercourse under the age of 16 would lead to other evils which society ought not to encourage.

I suggest that the exception to sixthly and the proposed section 376 require to be modified. Correct legislative policy requires that the age of marriage itself should be raised. To permit marriage at a younger age and then prohibit sexual intercourse between man and his wife is patently absurd in modern conditions.

The explanation to section 375, in my opinion, needs a serious consideration. Many times in courts attempt is made to show that the offence of Rape is not proved in as much as the penetration, which is the ingredient of the offence is not proved; taking advantage of this provision many questions are asked to the prosecutrix which put her to

humiliation and in order to avoid this humiliation she gives certain admissions which are beneficial to the accused as a result of which the accused gets an acquittal. Therefore, I suggest that instead of the present explanation the explanation should be defined as follows:

'Physical contact of sexual organs with intent to commit rape is sufficient to constitute the offence of rape.'

In my opinion section 376(2) (a) requires to be modified by including Police Officer in uniform within the outside his jurisdiction, in this clause.

In my opinion, the explanation 1 to section 376(2) defining "Gang Rape", in clause 3 of the Bill need modification or clarification. There may be cases where a group of 5 persons would assault a woman out of whom 2 actually commit intercourse and the other 3 assist by holding hands or feet of the victim. It is likely that amongst these three a woman may be a participant. But, in view of the definition of rape given in section 375 a woman cannot commit rape and as such a woman actively assisting to commit the offence of "Gang Rape" cannot be convicted for the same offence, but she can at best be convicted of some other less serious offence. It is necessary that such cases also should be covered by the definition of "Gang Rape."

I am unable to support clause 6 of the Bill which creates a new presumption of consent under the proposed Section 114A of the Indian Evidence Act. The very facts which are required to be proved before the presumption arises will often lead the court to infer want of consent on the part of the woman. Such a presumption should be allowed to be raised by the court as a matter of common sense and as a part of intelligent appreciation of evidence. The "shall presume" presumption may well prove too harsh on the facts of the particular case and lead to conceiveable miscarriage of justice. The same result can be achieved be adding all illustration to section 114 of the Evidence Act leaving, it free to the court to raise a presumption where the facts warrant it.

RATNAGIRI;
October 24, 1982
Kartika 2, 1904 (Saka).

BAPUSAHEB PARULEKAR

VIII

I am putting this Note of Dissent mainly to record my dismay at the apathy of the Government in preparation and processing of this Bill.

Alarming increase in the incidents of rape and of suffering of women in the country has been best indicated by the Chief Minister of Madhya Pradesh when he told the Assembly that in his State on an average "one woman was raped every eight hours, one woman committed suicide every twelve hours and one woman was murdered in family dispute every third day in 1981". Horrid stories of rape and crimes against women have become regular features of the national dailies; a Baghpat, a Deoli, a Siswa, a Mathura case, invited heated discussions in the Parliament and a casual remark from the Home Minister that "it is a global phenomenon" and that "rape has been there since the days of Mahabharat". Sometimes an incident of rape by a landlord

or by a lord of the law and order in a police station stirred an agonised agitation at the local levels. But through years of official apathy, lack of public concern and inadequacies of the statutory provisions, the crime rate had spurted merrily, and the criminals, high and low, went scottree after delayed and despirited action of the law enforcement machinery of the State. The figures of rape cases, convictions and acquittals in some States, are given below as per details supplied to this Committee:

GENERAL CASES OF KAPE (Total for the years 1976, 1979 and 1960)

State									Cases Reported	Cases Resulted In conviction	Cases resulted in acquittals
Gujarat	•	•,	•		•			•	241	47	163
Haryana		•		•	•	•	•		245	68	135
Himachal P	rades	b				•			89	22	35
Karnataka	•	•	•	•	•				258	ىن	76
Kerala									129	32	95
Maharashtr	2								63	7	24
Punjab									243	81	159
West Benga	1.								1516	124	734
Delhi					•				202	27	58

It is to be borne in mind that the above mentioned figures did not reflect the reality of the situation as large number of incidents of rape evidently remain unreported, unregistered uninvestigated and conveniently out of record. But the Table in a way indicates the low per centage of cases resulting in conviction even among the reported cases.

The great deal of public discussion and protest that followed the judgement of the Supreme Court in the case of Tukaram vs. State of Maharashtra (known as 'Mathura case') made the Union Government request the law Commission for a special study of the subject. The Law Commission submitted its 84th Report on 24th April, 1980. The Home Minister gave an assurance on 19th June, 1980 that a comprehensive legislation to amend the laws relating rape would be brought during that session itself. It is understood that comments and suggestion were obtained in July, 1980 from the State Governments. But it is highly regrettable that the Criminal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1980, as introduced by the Parliament and referred to this Joint Select Committee, belied all expectations and the purpose of the efforts initiated by the Union Government. The hurried piece of legislation did not do justice to very many good recommendations made by the Law Commission and valuable suggestions given by the State Governments, by the Women Organisations and by eminent jurists. After consideration of all the memoranda submitted and oral evidences given, this Committee went into hybernation for some months as the Government could not make up its mind on the amendments to be proposed/accepted. When the Government amendments came finally, every clause in the Bill got amended radically. Truly the Government had an open mind—too much of an open mind that nothing concrete was there earlier.

I am afraid that the result of clause 2 of the Bill in addition to Section 228A may not, in the long run, benefit the victims, but give protection to the accused and depraved criminals from effective publicity and social protest. While it is desirable that the identity of the victim should be protected from unpleasant publicity, the form of clause 2, even as amended, may put a blanket ban on any press coverage of the incident and all efforts to mobilise public opinion and to organise social protest will be greatly hampered, if not ruled out. We should not forget that this very Bill itself was the result of wide press reporting and the public demand arising out of specific cases of rape.

Apart from the amendments suggested to the clauses of the Bill, the Committee have given some general recommendations suggesting comprehensive changes in the existing legislations relating to rape. Some of these suggestions were already there in the Law Commission's Report; had the Government shown greater concern and attention to the problems and the suggestions on the subject matter they should and could have brought a comprehensive Bill instead of leaving some vital aspects for another legislation.

Rape is not merely a criminal assault, it is an assault on her life, on her soul, on her social respectability. For no fault of hers, a woman is suddenly deprived of her inherent right to lead a normal and happy life; she is doomed to suffer in silence and only death can free her from the stigma and the agony. Apart from fixing deterrent punishment in the cases of rape, Government should take a wider view of the plight of the victims and provide for statutory and administrative measures to rehabilitate the poor women.

I am not sure whether the Bill as reported by the Joint Select. Committee will be considered and passed in the current session of Parliament, whether it should wait for the Budget Session or for the Monsoon Session next year. I feel that considering the urgency and importance of this legislation, the Government could have provided sometime in the current Session itself for passing of the Bill. But we should not forget that for a victim of rape, budget of her life is taxed heavily with misery and humiliation and rendered perpetually deficit; there is no monsoon session in her life, excepting for the rain of tears from her own eyes; she has to face a long winter session of frozen agony and barren future.

New Delhi; October 29, 1982 Kartika 7, 1904 (Saka). ERA SEZHIYAN,

THE CRIMINAL LAW (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1980

(As reported by the Joint Committee)

THE CRIMINAL LAW (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1980 (AS REPORTED BY THE JOINT COMMITTEE)

[Words side-lined or underlined indicate the amendments suggested by the Committee; asterisks indicate omissions.]

A BILL

further to amend the Indian Penal Code, the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 and the Indian Evidence Act, 1872.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Thirty-third Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. This Act may be called the Criminal Law (Amendment) Act, 1982.

Short title.

45 of 1860.

10

2. In the Indian Penal Code (hereinafter referred to as the Penal Code), after section 228, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

Insertion of new section 228A.

'228A. (1) Whoever prints or publishes the name or any matter which may make known the identity of any person against whom an offence under section 376, section 376A, section 376B, section 376C or section 376D is alleged or found to have been committed (hereafter in this section referred to as the victim) shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years and shall also be liable to fine.

Disclosure of identity of the victim of certain offences, etc,

- (2) Nothing in sub-section (1) extends to any printing or publication of the name or any matter which may make known the identity of the victim if such printing or publication is—
 - (a) by or under the order in writing of the officer-in-charge of the police station or the police officer making the investigation into such offence acting in good faith for the purposes of such investigation; or
 - (b) by, or with the authorisation in writing of, the victim;
 - (c) where the victim is dead or minor or of unsound mind, 10 by, or with the authorisation in writing of, the next of kin of the victim:

Provided that no such authorisation shall be given by the next of kin to anybody other than the Chairman or the Secretary, by whatever name called, of any recognised welfare 15 institution or organisation.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, "recognised welfare institution or organisation" means social welfare institution or organisation recognised in this behalf by the Central or State Government.

(3) Whoever prints or publishes any matter in relation to any proceeding before a court with respect to an offence referred to in sub-section (1) without the previous permission of such court shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years and shall also be liable to fine

Explanation.—The printing or publication of the judgment of any High Court or the Supreme Court does not amount to an offence within the meaning of this section.'.

3. In the Renal Code, for the heading "Of rape" occurring immediately before section 375 and for sections 375 and 376, the following 30 heading and sections shall be substituted, namely:—

Substitution of new sections for sections 375 and 376.

'Sexual offences

Rapa

375. A man is said to commit "rape" who, except in the case hereinafter excepted, has sexual intercourse with a woman under circumstances falling under any of the six following descriptions:— 35

First.—Against her will.

Secondly.—Without her *** consent.

Thirdly.—With her consent, when her consent has been obtained by putting her or any person in whom she is interested in fear of death or of hurt.

Fourthly.—With her consent, when the man knows that he is not her husband, and that her consent is given because she believes that he is another man to whom she is or believes herself to be lawfully married.

40

20

Fifthly.-With her consent, when, at the time of giving such consent, by reason of unsoundness of mind or intoxication or the administration by him personally or through another of any stupefying or unwholesome substance, she is unable to understand the nature and consequences of that to which she gives consent.***

Sixthly.—With or without her consent, when she is under sixteen years of age.

Explanation.—Penetration is sufficient to constitute the sexual intercourse necessary to the offence of rape.

Exception.—Sexual intercourse by a man with his own wife, the wife not being under fifteen years of age, is not rape.

376. (1) Whoever, except in the cases provided for by sub- Punishsection (2), commits rape shall be punished with imprisonment of ment for either description for a term which shall not be less than seven years rape. but which may be for life or for a term which may extend to ten years and shall also be liable to fine unless the woman raped is his own wife and is not under twelve years of age, in which case, he shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years or with fine or with both:

Provided that the court may, for adequate and special reasons to be mentioned in the judgment, impose a sentence of imprisonment for a term of less than seven years.

(2) Whoever,—

5

10

15

20

25

30.

35

40

45

- (a) being a police officer commits rape—
- (i) within the limits of the police station to which he is appointed; or
- (ii) in the premises of any station house whether or not situated in the police station to which he is appointed; or
- (iii) on a woman in his custody or in the custody of a police officer subordinate to him; or
- (b) being a public servant, takes advantage of his official position and commits rape on a woman in his custody as such public servant or in the custody of a public servant subordinate to him: or
- (c) being on the management or on the staff of a jail, remand home or other place of custody established by or under any law for the time being in force or of a women's or children's institution takes advantage of his official position and commits rape on any inmate of the institution; or
- (d) being on the management or on the staff of a hospital. takes advantage of his official position and commits rape on a woman in that hospital; or
 - (e) commits rape on a woman knowing her to be pregnant;

(f) commits rape on a woman when she is under twelve years of age; or

(g) commits gang rape,

shall be punished with rigorous imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than ten years but which may be for life and shall 5 also be liable to fine:

Provided that the court may, for adequate and special reasons to be mentioned in the judgment, impose a sentence of imprisonment of either description for a term of less than ten years.

Explanation 1.—Where a woman is raped by one or more in a 10 group of persons acting in furtherance of their common intention, each of the persons shall be deemed to have committed gang rape within the meaning of this sub-section.

Explanation 2.—"Women's or children's institution" means 15 an institution, whether called an orphanage or a home for neglected women or children or a widows' home or by any other name, which is established and maintained for the reception and care of women or children.

Explanation 3.—"Hospital" means the precincts of the hospital 20 and includes the precincts of any institution for the reception and treatment of persons during convalescence or of persons requiring medical attention or rehabilitation.

376A. Whoever has sexual intercourse with his own wife, who 25

is living separately from him under a decree of separation or under any custom or usage without her consent shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years and shall also be liable to fine.

376B. Whoever, being a public servant, takes *** advantage of his official position and induces or seduces, any woman, who is in his 30 custody as such public servant or in the custody of a public servant subordinate to him, to have sexual intercourse with him, such sexual intercourse not amounting to the offence of rape, shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to five years, and shall also be liable to fine.

35

376C. Whoever, being the superintendent or manager of a jail, remand home or other place of custody established by or under any law for the time being in force or of a women's or children's institution *** takes*** advantage of his official position and induces or seduces any female inmate of such jail, remand home, place or 40 institution to have sexual intercourse with him, such sexual intercourse not amounting to the offence of rape, shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to

five years, and shall also be liable to fine.

course by a man with his wife during separation. Inter-

Inter-

course by public servant with woman in his custody.

Intercourse by superintendent of jail, remand home, etc.

Explanation 1.—"Superintendent" in relation to a jail, remand home or other place of custody or a women's or children's institution includes a person holding any other office in such institution by virtue of which he can exercise any authority or control over its inmates.

Explanation 2.—The expression "women's or children's institution" shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 2 of sub-section (2) of section 376.

376D. Whoever, being on the management of a hospital or being Interon the staff of a hospital takes advantage of his position and has any sexual intercourse with any woman in that hospital, such sexual member intercourse not amounting to the offence of rape, shall be punished managewith imprisonment of either description for a term which extend to five years, and shall also be liable to fine.

Explanation.—The expression "hospital" shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 3 of sub-section (2) of section 376.'.

may ment or staff of a hospital with any Woman in that hospital

2 of 1974.

ider...

5

10

15

4. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (hereinafter referred to Amendas the Criminal Procedure Code), section 327 shall be renumbered as sub-ment of section (1) of that section and after it, as so numbered, the following section 20 sub-sections shall be inserted, namely:-

"(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section the inquiry into and trial of rape or an offence under section 376, section 376A, section 376B, section 376C or section 376D of the Indian Penal Code shall be conducted in camera:

Provided that the presiding judge may, if he thinks fit, or on an application made by either of the parties, allow any particular person to have access to, or be or remain in, the room or building used by the court.

(3) Where any proceedings are held under sub-section (2), it shall not be lawful for any person to print or publish any matter in relation to any such proceedings, except with the previous per-

5. In the First Schedule to the Criminal Procedure Code, under the Amendheading "I.—Offences under the Indian Penal Code",—

ment of the First

(a) after the entries relating to section 228, the following entries Schedule. shall be inserted, namely:-

6 5 "288A Disclosure of the Imprisonment Cognizable Bailable Any Magistrate. 40 identity of the for two years and victim of cortain offenous, Printing or pub-Ditto Ditto Ditto Ditto,"

45 of 1860.

25

90

mission of the court.".

(b) for the entries relating to section 376, the following entries shall be substituted, namely:-

1	2	3	4	5	6	
"376	Rape	Imprisonment for life or impri- sonment for ten years and fine.	Cognizable	Non-baileble	Court of Session.	5
	Intercourse by a man with his wife not being under twelve years of age.	Imprisonment for two years or fine or both.	Non-cognizable	Bailable	Ditto.	10
37 6A	Intercourse by a man with his wife during separation.	Imprisonment for two years and fine.	Ditto '	Ditto	Ditte.	15
376B	Intercourse by public servant with woman in his custody.	Imprisonment for five years and fine.	Cognizable (but no arrest shall be made without a warrant or without an order of a Magistrate).	Ditto	Ditto.	20
376C	Intercourse by superintendent of jail, remand home, etc.	Ditto	Ditto	Ditto	Ditto.	25
376D	Intercourse by manager, etc., of a hospital with any woman in that hospital.	Ditto	Ditto	Ditto	Ditto.".	30

Insertion of new section 114A in Act 1 of 1872.

6. After section 114 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872, the following section shall be inserted, namely:-

Presumption as to absence of consent in certain prosecutions for rape,

"114A. In a prosecution for rape under clause (a) or clause (b) or clause (c) or clause (d) or clause (e) or clause (g) of sub-section (2) of section 376 of the Indian Penal Code, where sexual intercourse 35 45 of 1860. by the accused is proved and the question is whether it was without the consent of the woman alleged to have been raped and she states in her evidence before the Court that she did not consent, the Court shall presume that she did not consent.".

APPENDIX I

(Vide paragraph 2 of the Report)

Motion in Lok Sabha for reference of the Bill to the Joint Committee "That the Bill further to amend the Indian Penal Code, the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 and the Indian Evidence Act, 1872, be referred to a Joint Committee of the Houses consisting of 33 members, 22 from this House, namely:—

- (1) Shri K. Arjunan
- (2) Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- (3) Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- (4) Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- (5) Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- (6) Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- (7) Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- (8) Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- (9) Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- (10) Shri D. K. Naikar
- (11) Shri K. S. Narayana
- (12) Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- (13) Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- (14) Shri Amrit Patel
- (15) Shri Qazi Saleem
- (16) Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- (17) Shri S. Singarvadival
- (18) Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- (19) Shri Trilok Chand
- (20) Shri P. Venkatasubbajah
- (21) Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- (22) Shri R. S. Sparrow

and 11 from Rajya Sabha:

That in order to constitute a sitting of the Joint Committee, the quorum shall be one-third of the total number of members of the Joint Committee.

That the Committee shall make a report to this House by the last day of the first week of the next session;

That in other respects, the Rules of Procedure of this House relating to Parliamentary Committees shall apply with such variations and modifications as the Speaker may make; and

That this House do recommend to Rajya Sabha that Rajya Sabha do join the said Joint Committee and communicate to this House the names of 11 members to be appointed by Rajya Sabha to the Joint Committee".

APPENDIX II

(Vide paragraph 3 of the Report)

Motion in Rajya Sabha

"That this House concurs in the recommendation of the Lok Sable that the Rajya Sabha do join in the Joint Committee of the Houses on the Bill further to amend the Indian Penal Code, the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 and the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 and resolves that the following elevent members of the Rajya Sabha be nominated to serve on the said Joint Committee:—

- 1. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 2. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 3. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 4. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 5. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 6. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 7. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 8. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 9. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 10. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav
- 11. Shri V. P. Munusamv."

APPENDIX I

(Vide paragraph 9 of the Repart)

List of Associations, Organisations, individuals etc. from who Midnistranda/Representations were received by the Committee

(i) Memoranda

1. Ms. Radha Kumar,

Stree Sangharsh.

. 21 Golf Links.

New Delhi.

2. Shrimati Subhadra Butalia, President.

Karmika, B-26, Gulmohar Park,

New Delhi.

3. Shri Hargovind Dabral.

Joint Secretary.

Home (Police) Department-9.

Lucknow (Uttar Pradesh)

4. Shri S. Mz. Yusuffain.

Detective, Gangavati Raichur District.

Karnatake.

5. Shrimati G. Seetha Kamaraj, President,

Bharatha Mahila Mandali,

Vijayawada-2.

6. Shri K. N. Shetty,

C-26, Visalakshi Thottam.

Subramania Road. Mylapore.

Madras-600004.

7. Shrimati V. Bagga.

Indian Council of Family and Social Welfare.

34 Shaheed Bhagat Singh Marg.

New Delhi.

8. Shrimati N. Nagpal, Secretary.

The Trained Nurses' Association of India.

L-17, Green Park.

New Delhi.

9. Shri Jaya Arunachalam, Member.

Governing Body, Indian Council of

Agricultural Research

President Working Women's Forum.

58 Bhimasena Garden Road

Mylepore, Madras.

10. Shrimatı Savitri Nigam.

Founder President.

Indian House Wives Federation.

G-1, Anand Niketan.

New Delhi.

- Shri Y. R. Jagadeesha, Advocate, No. 18, Kurubarasangha Building, II Main Gandhinagar, Bangalore.
- 12. Shri S. K. Acharyya,
 Advocate General of West Bangal,
 High Court,
 Calcutta.
- Judicial Secretary,
 Andaman and Nicobar Administration,
 Chief Commissioner's Secretariat,
 Port Blair.
- 14. The Financial Commissioner and Secretary to Government of Haryana, Administration of Justice Department, Chandigarh.
- Shri R. K. Manisana Singh, Advocate General, Government of Manipur, Imphal.
- Shri Lalnarayan Sinha,
 Attorney General of India.
- Shrimati N. Gayathri Devi,
 Working Women's Co-ordination Committee
 and others, Bangalore.
- 18. Shri Vidya Metha, General Secretary, Jyoti Sangh, Shri Nivkoreben Mafatlal Mahila Mandir, Relief Road, Ahmedabad.
- Shri U. D. Gour, Advocate General, Haryana.
- Shri Devarkkal,
 Kajgarbari, PO Yadgiri,
 Gulbarg (Karnataka).
- 21. Shri D. P. Kundu, Advocate General, Tripura,
- Shri Bhagwan Singh and others, Begarwani P. O. Chidha, Siyni, M.P.
 - Shri Rasane,
 Raghunathnagar (Distt. Aurangabad),
 Maharashtra.
 - 24. Shri B. Shivayogi, Belulli Shivayogi, Canvassing Agent, Kaipet, Davangere, Karnataka.

- Shri S. B. Waghmare,
 Municipal Corporation Colony,
 1/20-A Bhawanipeth,
 Pune.
- Dr. Sudesh Vaid, Secretary,
 People's Union for Democratic Rights,
 Jor Bagh,
 New Delhi.
- K. Indrani,
 Door No. 65/95 Fort,
 Kurnool Post, Andhra Pradesh.
- 28. Shri J. P. Atray, Secretary General. Society to Ensure Proper Treatment of Women (STEPTOW), House No. 79, Sector 7-A, Chandigarh.
- Shri A. S. Khisti,
 Social Worker, Friends Society,
 Railway Lines,
 Sholapur.
- 30. Manjula Dave, Hon. Secretary, Shri Kasturba Strivikasgruh, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Jamnagar (Gujarat).
- Dr. Roopa Kulkarni, Convenor,
 Lecturer in Sanskrit,
 Post Graduate Training Department,
 Nagpur University, Nagpur.
- 32. Ch. Nimai Singh, Under Secretary (Law), Government of Manipur.
- Shrimati H. P. Mistry, Member of Parliament, Rajya Sabha.
- 34. All India Small & Medium Newspaper's Federation, Rambagh, Kanpur.
- 35. Government of Pondicherry, Pondicherry.
- Administration of Union
 Territory of Lakshadweep, Kavarathi Island.
- 37. Shri S. R. Narayana Ayyar, Advocate, Devinilayam, Coonoor.
- 38. Delhi Administration, Delhi.
- General-Secretary,
 Central Information Service Association,
 P.T.I. Building, Parliament Street,
 New Delhi.
- 40. Shrimati Padma Mohan Raj, Bangalore.

- The Director, Mitraniketan,
 Velland P.O.,
 District Trivandrum, (Kerala).
- 42. The President,
 University Women Association of Bangalore,
 43, 4th Main Sampangiramagan
 Bangalore.
- 43. Hon. Secretary,
 Shraddhanand Mahilashram,
 Shradhanand Road, King's Circle,
 Matunga, Bombay.
- 44. Chairman, Press Freedom Committee of the Indian and Eastern Newspaper Society, Rafi Marg, New Delhi.
- Shrimati Sunanda Bhandare,
 Advocate, Chairman,
 Legal Aid Committee, Guild of Service,
 Lawyers Chambers, Supreme Court and others,
 New Delhi.
- Shrimati Kumud M. Ranganekar, M.L.C., 'Adarsh', Kharkuan, Aurangabad.
- Shrimati Renuka Ray, President, Women's Co-ordinating Council,
 Red Cross Place.
 Calcutta,
- 48. Government of Goa, Daman & Diu Pannaji.
- Shrimati Roda Mistry, President,
 Indian Council of Social Welfare,
 175. Dadabhai Naoroji Road,
 Bombay.
- 50. Government of Sikkim, Gangtok.
- Shri R. Krishnamoorthy, Advocate-General, Tamil Nadu High Court Building, Madras.
- 52. Shri V. D. Joglekar, Advocate. Pune Bar Association, 229 Sadashiv Peth, Pune-30.
- 53. Democratic Women's Association,Tamil Nadu and others.16, Stringer Street,Madras.
- District Bar Association, Sirsa.
- 55. Government of West Bengal, Calcutta
- Co-operative Bar Association. Ahmedabad.

- 57. Government of Gujarat, Gandhinagar, Gujarat.
- 58. District Bar Association. Sultanpur (UP).
- National Federation of Indian Women,
 Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
 New Delhi.
- 60. Indian Federation of University Women Association, Calcutta.
- Satara District Bar Association. Satara.
- 62. Hind Kusht Nivaran Sangh.1, Red Cross Road,New Delhi.
- Theosophical Society,
 East Patel Nagar,
 New Delhi.
- 64. Uttar Vibhag Stree Sanstha Sanyukta Samiti, Dadar. Bombay.
- 65. Shri M. S. Phirangi, Advocate, Hubli Road, Dharwad (Karnataka).
- All India Crime Prevention Society, Kalpi Road, Kanpur.
- Tripura Rajya Nari Samiti,
 Thakur Pali Road,
 Krishnanagar,
 Agartala.
- 68. Chandigarh Administration, Chandigarh
- Bar Association,
 Sitapur (U.P.).
- 76. National Federation of Indian Women, (West Bengal Committee).11-B Sunny Park, Calcutta.
- 71. Government of Punjab, Chandigarh.
- 72. District Bar Association, Dumka, Bihar.
- Paschim Banga Mahila Samity,
 188/2 Ganguly Street,
 Calcutta.
- 74. President.
 Servadeshlok Yavatmal District,
 Bar Association,
 Yavatmal (Maharashtra).

- 75. Bar Association, Chittorgarh, Rajasthan.
- 76. Sarvadeshak Arya Pratinidhi Sabha, Maharishi Daya Nand Bhavan, Ramlila Maidan, New Delhi.
- 77. Shri G. S. Nihalani, Advocate, Jangirabad, Bhopal.
- 78. Bar Association, Udaipur, Rajasthan.
- Shrimati Mangalam,
 Sampath,
 Tamil Nadu Women's Federation,
 8th Cross Road,
 Madras.
- Lok Sevak Sangh,
 Lajpat Bhavan,
 New Delhi.
- Government of Nagaland, Kohima.
- 82. District Bar Association, .Patna.
- 83. Nellore Bar Association, Nellore.
- 84. Dhar District Bar Association, Dhar (M.P.).
- 85. Shri Nahar Singh,
 P.A. to Directorate General of Tech. Dev. Udyog Bhavan,
 New Delhi.
- Shri U. N. Pandit,
 Purani Khadbi,
 Visnagar, Dist. Mehsana,
 (Gujarat).
- 87. Centre of Indian Trade Unions,6, Talkatora Road, New Delhi.
- 88. Ishwari Prasad, Dattareya Orthopatic Centre (Andhra Mahila Sabha), Madras.
- Dr. Vasudha,
 Dhagamwar, Hirapur,
 Dhanbad (Bihar).
- 90. Press Council of India, Faridkot House, New Delhi.
- 91. Shri V. P. Munusamy, M.P.
- 92. Government of Madhya Pradesh, Bhopal.

- 93. India Society for the Rehabilitation of the Handicapped, Bombay.
- 94. Bharatiya Grameen Mahila Sangh, New Delhi.
 - 95. Government of Karnataka, Bangalore.
 - 96. Shrimati Rani, Lila Ram Kumar Bhargava, Lucknow.
 - 97. Government of Kerala, Trivandrum.
 - 98. Government of Tamil Nadu, Madras.
 - 99. Hyderabad Women's Industrial Co-operative Society, Hyderabad.
- Andhra Pradesh Mahila Federation, Hyderabad.
- All India Association of Deniberatic Lawyers, Hyderabad.
- 102. Dr. (Mrs.) KI Shemar Phatte, Chiplun, Dist. Ratnagiri.
- 103. 'Agnes Ville', Institutes and disabled home, School 1988 Bangalore. Specifically specified and disabled home, Specifically and Specifical

- 104. Bhartiya Janata Party, Dadar, Bombay.
- 105. Shrimati Jayashree and others Stree Jagratti, St. Joseph Nagar, Joppu Mangalore.
- 106. Shri K. F. Rustamji, B 2/2 Safdarjang Enclave, New Delhi.
- 107. Shrimati Anusuya Jaiswal, Chairman, State Social Welfare Advisory Board, Patna.
- 108. Shrimati Manorma Bawa, Member, State Social Welfare Advisory Board and Secretary Mahila Imdad Committee, Patna.
- Shrimati Saraswati Pradhan, Ex-M.P.,
 P.O. Bargarh Distt. Sambalpur, Orissa.
- 110. Shrimati Mukul Jha, Vice President, Bihar Rajya Samaj Kalyan Salahakar, Patna.
- 111. Shri Kirpal Singh, Head of the Department of Law, Guru Nanak Dev University, Amritsar.
- 112. Shrimati Uma Sinha, President, Akhil Bhartiya Mahila Parishad, Patna.
- 113. Shrimati Shyamla Pappu, Senior Advocate, Supreme Court, New Delhi.
- 114. Shri Upendra Baxi and others, Faculty of Law, Delhi University, Delhi.

- 115. All India Women's Conference and others, Calcutta.
- 116. Director, National Police Academy, Hyderabad.
- 117. Shrimati Aruna Asaf Ali and others, New Delhi.
- 118. Government of Maharashtra, Bombay.
- 119. Delhi Legal Aid and Advice Board, 1, Patiala House, New Delhi.
- 120. Justice S.M.N. Raina, (Retd.) 1625 Napier Town, Jabalpur (M.P.)

(ii) Representations

- Shrimati Indira Jai Sing
 Lawyers Collective,
 8th Floor, Stock Exchange Tower, Bombay.
- Shri Shyam Singh, Lecturer Faculty of Law, University of Jammu and Kashmir, Jammu.
- 3. Shrimati D. Vijaya, Convenor, Samata, Mysore.

APPENDIK IV

MINUTES OF THE SITTINGS OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE ON THE CRIMINAL LAW (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1980

I

First sitting

3-2-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 3 February, 1981 from 15.00 to 16.00 hours.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

7

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- €. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 6. Shri R. K. Mhalgi

!

- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 9. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 10. Shri Amrit Patel
- 11. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 12. Shri S. Singarvadiyal
- 13. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 14. Shri Trilok Chand
- 15. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 16. Shri P. Venkatasubbalah

Rajya Sabha

- 17. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 18. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 19. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 20. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 21. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 22. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 23. Shri V. P. Munusamv
- 24. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring

SECRETARIAT

Shri Gian Chand-Additional Secretary

- Shri S. D. Kaura—Senior Legislative Committe Officer Legislative Counsel
- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel

- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh—Assistant Legislative Counsel.
- 2. At the outset, the Chairman welcomed the members of the Committee and referred to the importance and urgency of the proposed legis lative measure and the task before the Committee. The Chairman also informed them about the circulation of documents on the Bill.
 - 3. The Committee then considered their future programme of work.
- 4. The Committee decided to invite memoranda on the Bill from the State Governments, Union Territory Administrations, Public Bodies, Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Associations/Councils, Press Organisations, Individuals etc. interested in the subject matter of the Bill by the 18th February, 1981 for their consideration.
- 5. The Committee also decided that a circular letter might be addressed to the Chief Secretaries of all State Governments/Union Territory Administrations, Bar Associations/Councils, Press Organisations and Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations (List to be supplied by the Ministry of Home Affairs), Attorney General and Advocates General of all States inviting their comments/suggestions on the provisions of the Bill by the 18th February, 1981.
- 6. The Committee further decided that oral evidence from the interested parties should be taken and the Committee authorised the Chairman to select parties for the purpose.

The Chairman also requested the Members to suggest names of the Organisations/Individuals etc. who might be invited for oral evidence before the Committee.

- 7. The Committee then decided to issue a Press Communique inviting memoranda on the Bill and requests from the interested parties for oral evidence as per annexure. They also desired that the contents of the Press Communique should be given wide publicity and should be broadcast/telecast from all Stations of All India Radio/Doordarshan Kendra respectively.
- 8. The Committee desired that the Ministry of Home Affairs might tabulate the memoranda that might be received by the Committee and give their comments on the various points raised therein for their consideration.
- 9. The Committee felt that in view of the importance and implications of the proposed legislation and short time at their disposal, it would not be possible for them to complete various stages of the Bill and present their Report by the stipulated date, i.e. 20th February, 1981. The Committee, therefore, decided to seek an extension of time for presentation of their Report by the last day of the first week of the Sixth Session.

The Committee authorised the Chairman and, in his absence, Shri R. K. Mhalgi M. P. to move the necessary motion in the House in this healf

- 10. The Committee authorised the Chairman to fix the date and time of their next sitting.
 - 11. The Committee then adjourned.

ANNEXURE

LOK SABHA SECRETARIAT

Press Communique

The Joint Committee of both Houses of Parliament on the Crimnal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1980, at their first sitting held on the 3rd February, 1981 under the Chairmanship of Shri D. K. Naikar, M.P. decided that the State Governments, Union Territory Administrations, Public Bodies, Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Bar Associations/Councils, Press Organisations and Individuals interested in the subject matter of the Bill and desirous of submitting their memoranda on the provisions of the Bill for consideration of the Committee should send preferably 5 copies thereof so as to reach the Secretary, Lok Sabha, Parliament house Annexe, New Delhi on or before the 18th February, 1981. The Bill seeks further to amend the Indian Penal Code, the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 and the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 with respect mainly to the offence of rape and provides inter alia for wider definition of rape, more stringent measures to deal with the crime and minimum punishment for the accused.

The Memoranda, which might be submitted to the Committee, would form part of the records of the Committee and should be treated as strictly confidential and not circulated to anyone, as such an act would constitute a breach of privilege of the Committee.

Those who are desirous of giving oral evidence before the Committee, besides sending memoranda, are requested to intimate to that effect to the Lok Sabha Secretariat for consideration of the Committee by the aforesaid date.

The Criminal Law (Amendment) Bill, 1980 as introduced in Lok Sabha, was published in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part-II, Section 2, dated the 12th August, 1980.

New Delhi:

February 4, 1981 Magha 15, 1902 (S)

No. 6/4(1)/80/CII

February 4, 1981

Magha 15, 1902 (S)

Copy forwarded for information to:-

- Director General (Shri U. L. Baruah), All India Radio, New Delhi.
- Director General (Shri S. P. Narayan), Doordarshan, New Delhi.

The Joint Committee have desired that the contents of the Press Communique should be given wide publicity through All India Radio and Doordarshan. It is, therefore, requested that this may please be broadcast from all stations of A.I.R. and telecast from all Doordarshan Kendras on three successive days and intimation to this effect may kindly be sent to this Secretariat for information of the Joint Committee.

SENIOR LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE OFFICER

П

Second sitting

17-3-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 17 March, 1981 from 16.00 to 16.45 hours.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo.
- 5. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 6. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 11. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 12. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 13. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 14. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 15. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 16. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 17. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 18. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel

Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri P. K. Kathpalia—Additional Secretary

Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary

- 2. At the outset, the Chairman informed the Members that in response to the Press Communique and circular letters addressed to the State Governments/Union Territory Administrations, various organisations and individuals inviting memoranda containing comments/suggestions on the provisions of the Bill, only 48 memoranda had been received by the Secretariat. These memoranda had already been circulated to them.
- 3. The Committee were also informed that although the last date for receiving memoranda had been fixed as 18th February, 1981, several requests for extension of time for submission of memoranda were received by the Chairman. He had, therefore, extended the time upto the 7th March, 1981 and a Press Belease was also issued accordingly.

- 4. Since sufficient number of memoranda especially from the Women's Organisations at National levels had not been received, the Committee decided to further extend the date for receipt of memoranda up to the 15th April, 1981. The Committee also decided that all Members of Parliament and District Bar Associations should also be requested to send their comments/suggestions on the provisions of the Bill by the aforesaid date. The list of State-wise districts in the country would be supplied by the Ministry of Home Affairs for the purpose of sending letters to the District Bar Associations.
- 5. The Committee desired that a Press Communique might be issued again for gaining wide publicity for sending memoranda by the aforesaid date. The Press Communique should also be sent to the newspapers in regional languages.
- 6. The Chairman also informed the Members that as per decision taken by Committee at their sitting held on the 3rd February, 1981, the suggestions contained in the memoranda received by the Committee were being tabulated by the Ministry of Home Affairs and tabular statement indicating the comments of the Ministry on the points raised therein would be circulated to members in due course.
- 7. The Chairman then informed the Members that as requested earlier, they might suggest the names of organisations/individuals etc. by the 15th April, 1981 who should be invited for giving oral evidence before the Committee.
- 8. Some members suggested that up-to-date copies of the three Acts viz. Indian Penal Code, Code of Criminal Procedure and the Indian Evidence Act, should be made available to them for reference and day to day use. The Minister of State for Home Affairs agreed to make available requisite number of copies of these Acts to the Lok Sabha Secretariat for the purpose.
- 9. The Committee then authorised the Chairman to fix the date and time of their next sitting sometime after the 15th April, 1981 to chalk out their future programme of work viz. study tours, hearing of oral evidence and clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.
 - 10. The Committee then adjourned.

Ш

Third Sitting

29-4-1981

The Committee sat on Wednesday, 29 April, 1981 from 15.30 to 16.30 hours.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shrimati Vidya Chaturvedi
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Madhuri Singh

- 6. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 9. Shri Trilok Chand
- 10. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 11. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 12. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 13. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 14. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 15. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri Surendra Mohanty

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi Joint Secretary and Si Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh—Assistant Legislative Counsel.
 REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS
- 1, Shri P. K. Kathpalia—Additional Secretary.
- 2 Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary,
- 2. At the out set, the Chairman informed the Members that:
 - (i) So far, 89 memoranda had been received from the State Governments/Union Perritory Administrations, Women's and Voluntary Organisations, Attorney General, Advocates General, Press Organisations, District Bar Associations, individuals, etc. and circulated to Members;
 - (ii) As desired by Members, latest copies of the three Acts viz.
 (i) I.P.C. (ii) Criminal Procedure Code (iii) Indian Evidence Act received from Ministry of Home Affairs had been forwarded to the Members of the Committee; and
 - (iii) So far, 19 parties had expressed their desire to appear before the Committee for oral evidence.
- 3. The Committee then considered their future programme of work including hearing and recording of oral evidence on the Bill from the interested parties. While discussing whether the Committee should undertake study visits in different groups to have informal discussion with the interested parties who were not in a position to come to Delhi, or to hold informal sittings for taking oral evidence at different places in the country, the Committee decided to hold formal sittings after 5th June, 1981, for the purpose of taking oral evidence at Bombay, Bangalore, Hyderabad, Lucknow, Bhopal, Simla and Itanagar in different phases subject to the permission being granted by the Hon'ble Speaker. The Chairman was authorised to fix the dates and programmes of sittings keeping in view the programmes regarding on-the-spot visits/sittings of other Select/Joint Committees.

As regards organisations/associations, individuals to be invited for oral evidence, it was decided that these might be selected by the Chairman from the 19 requests received by the Committee so far as well as out of the suggestions that might be received from the Members of the Committee. The Committee also felt that experts such as Shri Dharam Vir, Chairman of the Police Commission and Shri Rustamji might also be invited for the purpose.

4. The Chairman then requested members that they might send their suggestions for inviting organisations/associations, individuals etc. for oral evidence to the Lok Sabha Secretariat before the current session was over.

The Committee then adjourned.

IV

Fourth Sitting

30-6-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 30 June, 1981 from 10.00 to 12.30 hours in Conference Hall of the H.P. Institute of Public Administration, Fairlawns, Mashobra, Simla.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 6. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri S. Singarvedival
- 11. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 12. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 13. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 14. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 15. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri M. P. Khosla-Officer on Special Duty
- 2. Shri S. C. Bablani—Under Secretary.

Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of the following State Government/Organisation etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:

- I. Government of Himachal Pradesh, Simla Spokesmen:
 - (i) Shri Jai Chand Malhotra, Secretary (Law).
 - (ii) Shri Inderjeet Singh Sodki, Inspector General of Police
 - (iii) Shri K. C. Chauhan, Director, Welfare.

(10.00 to 11.00 hours)

II. Society to Ensure Proper Treatment of Women, Chandigarh Spokesmen:

- 1. Shri J. P. Atray, General Secretary.
- 2. Shri V. N. Negi, S.S.P. Rohtak.

(11.05 to 12.15 hours)

- 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.
- 4. The Committee then considered revival of their earlier programme of sittings which were originally scheduled to be held at Bombay, Bangalore and Hyderabad from 10th to 16th June, 1981 and decided to hold these sittings at Bombay, Hyderabad and Bangalore from 28th July to 4th August, 1981 to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of Woraen's and Voluntary Social Organisations and State Governments.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, the 1st July, 1981 at 10.00 hours.

V

Fifth Sitting

1.7.1981

The Committee sat on Wednesday, 1 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 13.15 hours in Conference Hall of the H.P. Institute of Public Administration, Fairlawns, Mashobra, Simla.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

٠.

Lok Sabha

2. Shri K. Arjunan

E : .

- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
 - 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
 - 5. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
 - 6. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
 - 7. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
 - 8. Shri Qazi Saleem .

- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 11. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 12. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha .

<u>.</u>

- 13. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 15. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 16. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 17. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 18. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 19. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 20. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yaday

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri M. P. Khosla-Officer on Special Duty
- 2. Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary.
- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of the following State Governments, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Union Territory Administration of Chandigarh

Spokesman:

Shri M. S. Nagra,

Legal Remembrancer.

II. Government of Punjab, Chandigarh

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri Aftab Singh Bakshi, Legal Remembrancer.
- (ii) Shri S. V. Singh, S. P. Special Branch.

III. Government of Haryana, Chandigarh

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri L. C. Gupta, IAS,

 Financial Commissioner and Secretary to Government of

 Haryana, Home Department.
- (ii) Shri B. S. Yadav,

 Legal Remembrancer and Secretary to Government of

 Haryana, Legislative Department.
- (iii) Shri Manmohan Singh, IPS,

Inspector General of Police, Haryana.

3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept,

4. The Committee re-considered their programme of sittings to be held at Bombay, Hyderabad and Bangalore during July/August, 1981 and decided to reschedule the dates from 28th July—4th August, 1981 to 27th July—2nd August, 1981 for holding the said sittings.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Lucknow at 10.00 hours on Friday, the 3rd July, 1981.

VI

Sixth Sitting

3-7-1981

The Committee sat on Friday, 3 July, 1981 from 15.00 to 16.30 hours in Room No. 80, Vidhan Sabha Secretariat, Lucknow.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- . 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
 - 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
 - 4. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
 - 5. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
 - 6. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
 - 7. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
 - 8. Shri Qazi Salcem
 - 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 11. Shri Trilok Chand

- 12. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 13. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 14. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 15. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 16. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 17. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 18. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 19. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary.

2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha;

I. All India Crime Prevention Society, Lucknow Spokesman:

Smt. Rani Lila Ram Kumar Bhargava

(15.00 to 15.30 hours)

II. All India Seva Samiti, Allahabad Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri S. P. Pande, Organising Secretary
- (ii) Shri Gopal Krishna Misra, Advocate

(15.30 to 15.45 hours)

III. Uttar Pradesh Rajya Kalayan Salhakar Board, Lucknow Spokesman:

Dr. Kumari Kanchan Lata Sabharwal-President

(15.45 to 16.00 hours)

IV. Begum Aizaz Rasul, M.L.A.

(16.00 to 16.25 hours)

- 3. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.
- 4. Shri Lal K. Advani, a Member of the Committee then pointed out that at their sittings held at Simla some sound-system personnel had tape-recorded the proceedings of the Committee which was nothing but a breach of privilege of the Committee. The Chairman taking the consensus of the Committee directed that the tape-record be obtained and kept in the custody of Lok Sabha Secretariat.

The Committee then adjourned to meet at 10.00 hours on Saturday, the 4th July, 1981,

VII

Seventh Sitting

4-7-1981

The Committee sat on Saturday, 4 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 14.00 hours in Room No. 80, Vidhan Sabha Secretariat, Lucknow.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Smt. Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 5. Shrimati R. K. Mhalgi
- 6. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 7. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 8. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrrow
- 11. Shri Trilok Chand
- 12. Shri V, S. Vijayaraghavan
- 13. Shri P. Venkatasubbalah

Rajya Sabha

.

**

Ï

- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 15. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. C. Bablani--Under Secretary.

2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following State Government representatives, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:

Government of Uttar Pradesh, Lucknow

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri Goverdhan Lal Shukla, Judicial Secretary/Legal Remembrancer
- (ii) Shri Naresh Kumar, Inspector General of Police
- (iii) Shri R. C. Takru, Home Secretary

(10.00 to 13.30 hours)

- 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.
- 4. The Committee then considered the request of Shri S. W. Dhabe, M.P. regarding holding of the sitting of the Committee at Calcutta. After some deliberation it was decided that the matter may be placed before the Committee again at Bangalore for their consideration.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Bhopal at 10.00 hours on Monday, the 6th July, 1981.

VIII

Eighth Sitting

6-7-1981

The Committee sat on Monday, 6 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 13.00 hours and again from 15.00 to 17.20 hours in Conference Hall, Vallabh Bhavan, Bhopal,

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 4, Shri K, S. Narayana

- 5. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 6. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 7. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 8. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 9. Shri Trilok Chand
- 10. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 11. Shri Ramchandra Bhardawaj
- 12. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 13. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 14. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 15. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri M. P. Khosla-Officer on Special Duty

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc. the Chairman drew their attention to the Provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Shri G. S: Nihalani, Advocate, Bhopal

(10.00 to 11.20 hours)

II. Shri L. S. Sinha,

President Bar Association, Bhopal.

(11.20 to 12.20 hours)

III. Madhya Pradesh Mahila Kalyan Samiti, Bhopal Spokesman:

Shrimati Vimla Sharma

(12.20 to 12.30 hours)

IV. Inner Wheel Club, Bhopal

Spokesman:

Shrimati Saroj Lalwani

(12.30 to 13.00 hours)

3. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

4. The Committee reassembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following Women's Voluntary Social Organisations from 15.00 to 17.20 hours.

Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's Voluntary Social Organisations the Chairman drew their attention to the Provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:

!

I. Bhartiya Grameen Mahila Sangh, Indore

Spokesman:

ļ

Shrimati Krishna Aggarwal

(15.00 to 15.45 hours)

II. Bal Niketan Sangh, Indore.

Spokesman:

Shrimati Shalini Moghe

(15.45 to 16.00 hours)

III. (i) Bhartiya Vidya Pracharni Sabha, Indore

Spokesman:

Shrimati Nirmala Devi Podar

(ii) Gangwal Mahila Kala Niketan, Indore

Spokesman:

Shrimati Indumati Jain

(iii) St. Marks School, Indore

Spokesman:

Shrimati Florence Jacob

(iv) Nari Sahakari Samiti, Gwalior

Spokesman:

Shrimati Mandakim Wakanker

(v) Association for Social Health in India, Gwalior Spokesman:

Shrimati Kamala Devi Jadhav

- (vi) M. P. Mahila Kalyan Parishad, Bhopal Spokesmen:
 - (a) Shrimati Pragya Mukherjee
 - (b) Shrimati Prakash Kumari Harkavat
- (vii) All India Women's Conference, Jabbalpur

Spokesman:

Shrimati Chandra Prabha Pateria

(16.00 to 16.55 hours)

IV. Association for Social Health in India, Gwalior Spokesmen:

Shri Ram Sanehi

(16.55 to 17.00 hours)

V. Shrimati Jayaben, MLA, Madhya Pradesh.

(17.00 to 17.20 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Tuesday, the 7th July, 1981 at 10.00 hours.

IX

Ninth Sitting

7-7-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 7 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 14.00 hours and again from 15.30 to 17.30 hours in Conference Hall, Vallabh Bhavan, Bhopal.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 4. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 5. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 6. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 7. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 8. Shri Trilok Chand
- 9. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajua Sabha

- 10. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 11. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 12. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 13. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 14. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 15. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETABIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri M. P. Khosla—Officer on Special Duty.

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the evidence of the representatives of the State Government of Madhya Pradesh the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I.. Government of Madhya Pradesh Bhopal Spokesman:
 - (i) Shri Brahma Swarup, Additional Chief Secretary.
 - (ii) Shri K. K. Singh, Deputy Inspector General of Police (10.15 to 11.15 hours)
 - II. Shri J. A. Khare, Deputy Secretary Law Department (11.15 to 12.55 hours)
 - III. Shri R. N. Sangani, District and Session Judge, Bhopal (12.55 to 14.00 hours)
 - 3. A verbatim record of proceedings was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.30 hours.

- 4. The Committee re-assembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following Madhya Pradesh State Government representatives from 15.30 to 17.30 hours.
- 5. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - (i) Dr. (Smt.) Gidwani, Superintendent, Sultania Hospital, Bhopal
 - (ii) Shrimati Sushma Nath, Collector, Narsimhapur.
 - (iii) Shri R. S. L. Yadav, Superientendent of Police, Bhopal.
 - (iv) Shri R. N. Vaidya, Director of Panchayat and Social Welfare, Bhopal.
 - (v) Shri Vijaya Singh, District Magistrate, Bhopal.
 - (vi) Shri B. S. Acharya, Additional District Magistrate, Bhopal.

 (15.30 to 17.00 hours)
 - (vii) Shri Harish Chandra, Director, Medico Legal Institute, Bhopal.
 (17.00 to 17.30 hours)
 - 6. A verbatim record of proceedings was kept.

The Committee then adjourned.

X

Tenth Sitting

27-7-1981

The Committee sat on Monday, 27 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 14.00 hours and again from 15.30 to 18.45 hours in Room No. 2001, New Vidhan Bhavan, Bombay.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 4. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 5. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 6. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 7. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 8. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 9. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 10. Shri Trilok Chand
- 11. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 12. Shri Qazi Saleem.

Rajya Sabha

- 13. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 15. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 16. Shri S. W. Dhabe

- 17. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 18. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 19. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 20. Shri Era. Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- I. Shri M. P. Khosla-Officer on Special Duty.
- 2. Shri S. C. Balblani-Under Secretary.
- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear oral evidence of the representatives of the State Government of Maharashtra, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha.

Government of Maharashtra:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri A. D. Tated, Secretary, Law and Judiciary Department;
- (ii) Shri P. G. Salvi, Secretary, Home Department;
- (iii) Shri S. K. Chaturvedi, I.G.P. Maharashtra State. (10.00 to 14.00 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

- 3. The Committee reassembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following women's and voluntary social organisations from 15.30 to 18.45 hours.
- 4. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following women's and voluntary social organisations, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Shrimati Sushilatai Athawale, Principal Sameshwar College, Pune.

(15.30 to 15.45 hours)

II. Lawyers Collective, Bombay

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Indira Jai Sing
- (ii) Shri Anand Grover
- (15.45 to 17.00 hours)
- III. National Federation of Indian Women, Maharashtra Branch, Bombay.

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Manju Gandhi
- (ii) Shrimati Kusum Nadkarni (17.00 to 17.15 hours)

IV. Uttar Vibhag Stree Sanstha Sanyukta Samiti Matunga, Bombay.

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Indumati M. Kulkarni
- (ii) Shrimati Tara K. Shah
- (iii) Shrimati Kastur Manjrekar
- (iv) Shrimati Salini Mantri (17.15 to 17.30 hours)
- V. Indian Council of Social Welfare, Bombay Spokesman:
 - Shri H. S. Ursekar, Legal Consultant and Ex-Session Judge, Bombay.

(17.30 to 18.15 hours)

VI. Indira Congress Mahila Front, Thane District:

Spokesman:

Shrimati Shakuntala Paranjpe, President and Notary Public Advocate.

(18.15 to 18.45 hours)

5. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Tuesday, the 28th July, 1981 at 14.00 hours.

XI

Eleventh Sitting

28-7-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 28 July, 1981 from 14.00 hours to 18.30 hours in Room No. 2001, New Vidhan Bhavan, Bombay.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 5. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 9. Shri Bapusahib Parulekar
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 13. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 14. Shri Trilok Chand
- 15. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajua Sabha

- 16. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 17. Shri Ram Chandra Bhardwaj
- 18. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 19. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 20. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 21. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 22. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 23. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 24. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 25. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri M. P. Khosla—Officer on Special Duty

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear oral evidence of the representatives of the State Government of Gujarat and other women's social organisations, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Government of Gujarat, Gandhinagar:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri R. V. Chandramouli, Secretary, Home Department.
- (ii) Shri K. M. Satwani, Secretary, Legal Department. (14.00 to 16.00 hours)
- II. Shramik Mahila Sangh, Bombay:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Ahilya Rangnekar
- (ii) Shrimati Tara Valamu (16.00 to 16.15 hours)
- III. Working Women's Co-ordination Committee, Bombay: Spokesmen:

Shrimati Subhashini Ali

(16.15 to 16.30 hours)

IV. Lawyers for Democracy

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri Arun Sathe
- (ii) Shri Haresh Jagtani
- (iii) Shri Mahesh Jethamalani
- (iv) Shri Raj Purohit
- (v) Shri M. D. Angal
- (vi) Shri Milind Sathe
- (vii) Shri Nitim G. Raut

(16.30 to 17.30 hours)

V. Dr. Roopa Kulkarni,

Lecturer Nagpur University, Nagpur.

(17.30 to 17.45 hours)

VI. Bhartiya Janata Party (Mahila Agadi) Bombay: Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Jayawantiben Mehta, M.L.A.
- (ii) Shrimati Malti Nanawani
- (iii) Shrimati Chandra Kanta Goyal
- (iv) Shrimati Shalini Kulkarni
- (v) Shrimati Pushpa Wagle
- (vi) Miss Sudha Gandhi, Advocate
- (vii) Miss Chanushila Azgaonkar ...
- (viii) Shri Ramdas Nayak, Ex-M.L.A.

(17.45 to 18.30 hours)

3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Hyderabad at 15.30 hours on Wednesday, the 29th July, 1981.

XII

Twelth Sitting

29-7-1982

The Committee sat on Wednesday, 29 July, 1981 from 15.30 to 17.40 hours in Old Committee Hall, Andhra Pradesh Government Secretariat. Hyderabad.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 5. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 6. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 7. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 8. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 14. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah.

Rajya Sabha

- 15. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 16. Shri Ramchandra Bhardwaj

- 17. Shri Amar Prosad Chakraborty
- 18. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 19. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 20. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 21. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 22. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 23. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer Representatives of the Ministry of Home Affairs

- 1. Shri M. P. Khosla, Officer on Special Duty
- 2. Shri S. C. Bablani, Under Secretary.
- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear oral evidence of the representatives of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:—
 - I. National Federation of Indian Women, Hyderabad:

Spokesman:

Shrimati Rita Seth, President.

(15.30 to 16.00 hours)

II. Hyderabad Women's Democratic Association, Hyderabad:

Spokesman:

Shrimati Fatima Alam Ali

(16.00 to 16.05 hours)

III. Bhartiya Grameen Mahila Sungh, Hyderabad:

Spokesman:

Shrimati A. Wahabuddin

(16.05 to 16.25 hours)

IV. Indian Council of Social Welfare, Hyderabad:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati D. Malhotra
- (ii) Shrimati Ayesha Rishad
- (iii) Shri B. V. Jagdish

(16.25 to 16.50 hours)

V. A. P. Mahila Samakhya, Hyderabad:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Sarla Devi
- (ii) Shrimati Brij Rani Goud
 - (iii) Shrimati C. Rajkumari

(16.50 to 17.10 hours)

VI. All Indian Women's Conference, Hyderabad:

Spokesman:

Mrs. Daya Devi

(17.10 to 17.40 hours)

3. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 10.00 hours on Thursday, the 30th July, 1981.

XIII

Thirteenth Sitting

30-7-1981

The Committee sat on Thursday, 30 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 13.10 hours and again from 15.00 to 16.00 hours in Old Committee Hall, Andhra Pradesh Government Secretariat, Hyderabad.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

. 1

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 5. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 6. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 10. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 14. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 15. Shri P. Venkatasubbiah

Rajya Sabha

- 1. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 2. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 3. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 4. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 5. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 6. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 7. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 8. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri M. P. Khosla, Officer on Special Duty
- 2. Shri S. C. Bablani, Under Secretary.
- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear oral evidence of the representatives of Government of Andhra Pradesh, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Direction

tions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:—

Government of Andhra Pradesh, Hyderabad:

Spokesmen:

- 1. Shri E. Ayyapu Ready, Law Minister.
- 2. Shri Jayakar Johnson, Secretary, Home.
- 3. Shri M. N. Rao, Secretary, Law.
- 4. Shri T. Ponnaiya,
 Addl. Inspector General of Police (Crimes)
 (10.10 to 13.10 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

- 3. The Committee reassembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations from 15.00 to 16.00 hours.
- 4. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's and Social Organisations the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Dilsukh Mahila Mandal, Hyderabad:

Spokesmen:

- 1. Shrimati Yamani Choudhari
- 2. Shrimati Jamulu Nisha Begaum
- 3. Shrimati Gayatri Devi

(15.00 to 15.40 hours)

II. Association of Democratic Lawyers:

Spokesman:

Shri Manohar Lal Saxena

(15.40 to 16.00 hours)

5. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then, adjourned to meet again at Bangalore at 10.00 hours on Friday, the 31st July, 1981.

XIV

Fourteenth Sitting

31-7-1981

The Committee sat on Friday, 31 July, 1981 from 10.00 to 13.00 hours and again from 15.00 to 17.00 hours in Committee Room No. 313, Vidhan Soudha, Bangalore.

PRESENT

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 5. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 6. Shri K. S. Narayana

وزنعم

- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 10. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 11. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 12. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 13. Shri Trilok Chand
- 14 Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 15. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 16. Shri Ram Chandra Bharadwaj
- 17. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 18. Shri S. W. D. Dhabe
- 19. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 20. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 21. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 22. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 23. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- Shri M. P. Khosla-Officer on Special Duty
- Shri S. C. Bablani, Under Secretary.
- 2. The Committee while considering their future programme felt that as they had yet to consider the suggestions contained in the memoranda received by the Committee from different parts of the country and hear oral evidence of the representatives of various Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc. in some of the States not visited so far; take up clause-by-clause consideration; and complete other stages of the Bill, it would not be possible for them to complete the work and present their Report by the stipulated date, i.e. the 21st August, 1981, The Committee, therefore, decided to seek further extension of time for the presentation of their Report by the last day of the first week of the Winter Session, 1981.
- 3. The Members were of the view that since they had visited some States in Western and Southern regions, they should also visit States in the Northern and Eastern regions to hear the views of various

Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc. there. The Committee, thereupon, decided that subject to the extension of time for presentation of Report being granted by the House and subject to the permission being granted by the Speaker Lok Sabha for holding sittings outside Delhi, the Committee might hold their next series of sittings at Patna, Calcutta, Itanagar, Bhubaneshwar and Srinagar during the next inter-session period. The Committee also decided to hold their sittings for two days at Delhi for taking oral evidence. The Committee authorised the Chairman to finalise the dates and the programme of the sittings in this regard and circulate the same to the Members in due course.

- 4. Before the Committee proceeded to hear oral evidence of the representatives of the following State Governments and Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Government of Karnataka

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri B. Shankara Reddy, Director of Prosecution
- (ii) Shri B. N. Garudachar,

 'Additional Inspector General of Police.
- (iii) Shri A. Venkat Rao, Secretary Law Department.

(10.30 to 12.30 hours)

II. Government of Kerala

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri C. Subramaniam,

 Deputy Inspector General Police
- (ii) Shri G. Sreedharan Nair, Additional Law Secretary.

(12.30 to 13.00 hours)

III. Union Territory Administration of Goa, Daman and Diu Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri U. D. Sharma, Secretary Law.
- (ii) Prof. S. D. Sharma,
 Director Incharge Psychiatry and Human Behaviour.
- (iii) Dr. J. M. Sharma,
 Prof. Forensic Medicines-cum-Police Surgeon.
 13.00 to 13.30 hours and 15.00 to 16.30 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

5. The Committee re-assembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the representatives of the Union Territory Administration of

Goa, Daman and Diu and the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations from 15.00 to 17.00 hours. The Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:

I. Young Women's Christian Association, Bangalore:

Spokesman:

ن د شخ

Shrimati E. V. Mathew

(16.30 to 16.45 hours)

II. Shri C. Iyangar, Bangalore

(16.45 to 17.00 hours)

6. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 10.00 hours on Saturday, the 1st August, 1981.

$\mathbf{x}\mathbf{v}$

Fifteenth Sitting

1-8-1981

The Committee sat on Saturday, 1 August, 1981 from 10.00 to 13.40 hours and again from 15.00 to 16.00 hours in Committee Room No. 313, Vidhan Soudha Bangalore.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 5. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 6. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Shri Qazi Saleem

ľ

- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 14. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 15. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 16. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty

- 17. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 18. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 19. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 20. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 21. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. C. Bablani, Under Secretary.

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear oral evidence of representatives of the following State Governments and Women's Voluntary Social Organisations, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Government of Tamil Nadu

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri Herbet Chellich,
 Deputy Secretary, Law Department.
- (ii) Shri A. John Joseph,
 Deputy Secretary Home Department.

(10.00 to 11.00 hours)

[The Committee decided to hear the Chief Secretary, Government of Tamil Nadu and the Home and Law Secretaries of that State at Delhi after receipt of memoranda containing the views of the Government of Tamil Nadu on the provisions of the Bill].

II. Union Territory Administration of Pondicherry

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri A. John Ambroise, Chief Judicial Magistrate Pondicherry.
- (ii) Shri S. G. Bhatt,
 Principal Government Law College, Pondicherry.
 (11.00 to 12.00 hours)

..........

- III. Bazme Niswan, Bangalore
 - (i) Shrimati Sharkat Qureshi
 - (ii) Shrimati Saadthuissa Begam

(12.00 to 12.30 hours)

IV. Shanthi Seva Samaj, Bangalore

Spokesman:

Shrimati Indu Krishnappa

(12.30 to 13.00 hours)

V. Karnataka Pradesh Congress (I) Committee, Bangalore:

Spokesman:

Shrimati Veeramani

(13.00 to 13.30 hours)

V. Dakshina Bharatha Mahila Sangham, Bangalore:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Padma Srinivasan
- (ii) Shrimati Bhavani Sunder Raj

(13.30 to 13.40 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

- 3. The Committee re-assembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the Women's Voluntary Social Organisations from 15.00 to 16.00 hours. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:—
 - I. Agnes Villa for Destitutes Bangalore:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Lilian Xavier.
- (ii) Shrimati B. Vimla.

(15.00 to 15.30 hours)

II. Working Women's Co-ordination Committee, Bangalore:

Spokesman:

Shrimati Malathi

(15.30 to 15.45 hours)

III. Democratic Women's Association, Karnataka, Bangalore:

Spokesman:

Shrimati Gayathri

(15.45 to 16.00 hours)

4. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned.

XVI

Sixteenth Sitting

14-10-1981

The Committee sat on Wednesday, 14 October, 1981 from 11.30 to 13.30 hours and again from 15.00 to 18.00 hours in Room No. 46, Assembly House, Calcutta.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman.

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4 Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 5. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
 - 9. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 13. Shri Trilck Chand
- 14 Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 15. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 16. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 19 Shri Era Sezhiyan
 - 20. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary.

Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary.

- 2 Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc. the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. National Federation of Indian Women, Calcutta.

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Rani Das Gupta
- (ii) Shrimati Seva Bandopadaya
- (iii) Shrimati Mina Das Gupta (1130 to 1205 hours)
- II. Paschim Banga Mahila Samity, Calcutta Spokesmen:
 - (i) Shrimati Bina Guha
 - (ii) Shrimati Vidya Munsi
 (1205 to 1245 hours)

- III. (a) All Bengal Women's Unoin, Calcutta
- Spokesmen:

į

- (i) Shrimati Romala Sinha
- (ii) Kumari Meera Datta Gupta
- (b) All India Women's Conference, Calcutta Metropolitan Branch, Calcutta

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Sati Sinha
- (ii) Shrimati Ashoka Gupta
- (c) The Women's Coordinating Council, Calcutta Spokesmen:
 - (i) Shrimati Bijoli Ghose
 - (ii) Shrimati Aloka Mitra
 - (1245 to 1330 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 1500 hours.

- 3. The Committee re-assembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following organisations/Associations from 1500 to 1800 hours. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following persons, Chairman drew their attention to the Provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - IV. (a) The Indian Journalists Association, Calcutta Spokesman:

Shri Lalit Mohan Banerjee.

(b) The Calcutta Press Club, Calcutta

Spokesman:

Shri Mrityunjoy Chattopadhyay.

- (c) Calcutta Journalist Club, Calcutta
- Spokesman:
 - (i) Shri Niranjan Sen Gupta
 - (ii) Shri Satyen Deb Mallick

(1500 to 1615 hours)

V. (a) The Bar Council of West Bengal, Calcutta

Spokesman:

Shri M. G. Mukherjee, Member and Senior Advocate.

(b) Chief Metropolitan Magistrate Court, Calcutta

Spokesman:

Shri Deven Mookherjee, Advocate

(c) Shri Tarapada Lahiri, Senior Advocate, Alipur Bar Association, Alipur

(1615 to 1800 hours)

A verbatim record of evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Assembly House, Calcutta at 1000 hours on Thursday, the 15th October, 1981

XVII

Seventeenth Sitting

15-10-1981

The Committee sat on Thursday, 15 October, 1981 from 1000 to 1320 hours in Room No. 46, Assembly House, Calcutta.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 5. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 9. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 13. Shri Trilok Chand
- 14. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 15. Shri P. Venkatasubbajah

Rajya Sabha

- 16. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 17. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 18. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 19. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 20. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 21. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 22. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 23. Shri Era Sezhiyari
- 24 Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary

Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of the following State Governments, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha
 - I. State Government of Manipur

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri I. Bijoy Singh, Law Secretary
- (ii) Shri A. Sukumar Singh, Under Secretary (Law) (1000 to 1035 hours)
- II. State Government of Tripura

Spokesman:

Shri H. Das, Secretary (Law)

(1035 to 1115 hours)

III. State Government of Assam

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrl C. D. Tripathi, Commissioner-cum-Secretary, Home Department.
- (ii) Shri D. C. Sharma, Secretary, Judicial Department.
 (1115 to 1150 hours)
- IV. State Government of West Bengal

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri Raghabendra Banerjee, Judicial Secretary.
- (ii) Shri A. K. Banerjee, Special Secretary, Home Department.
- (iii) Shri A. C. Sengupta, Joint Secretary (Judicial).

(1150 to 1320 hours)

- 3. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Itanagar on Saturday, the 17th October, 1981 at 1000 hours.

XVIII

Eighteenth Sitting

17-10-1981

The Committee sat on Saturday, 17 October, 1981 from 1000 to 1330 hours at Mahila Imdad Bhavan, Itanagar.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 5. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 10. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 15. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Mcena
- 18. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 19. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 20. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer
REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary

Shri S. C. Bablani—Under Secretary

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations, Socials Welfare Board, Press Organisations, Individuals, etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Social Welfare Board, Itanagar

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Omen Deori, Chairman
- (ii) Shrimati Yari Dolom, Social Worker

(1000 to 1040 hours)

II. Shri J. K. Panggeng, Advocate

(1040 to 1050 hours)

- II. (a) Shri J. K. Khargoria, Representative of UNI
 - (b) Shri R. B. Roy, Representatives of Hindustan Samachar (1050 to 1125 hours)

IV. Shri Tomo Riba, MLA (Leader of Opposition, Arunachal Assembly)

(1125 to 1200 hours)

V. State Government of Arunachal Pradesh, Itanagar

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri R. K. Patir, "Chief Secretary
- (ii) Shri J. M. Srivastava, Secretary (Law)
- (iii) Shri C. K. Raina, Extra Asstt. Commissioner (Along)
- (iv) Shri M. K. Mathur, Secretary, Arunachal Pradesh Legislative Assembly

(1200 to 1300 hours)

3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Patna on Monday, the 19th October, 1981 at 1500 hours.

XIX

NINETEENTH SITTING

19-10-1981

The Committee sat on Monday, 19 October, 1981 from 1515 to 1745 hours at Members Reading Room in Bihar Vidhan Sabha Secretariat Patna.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 5. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 10. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwai
- 15. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena

- 18. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 19. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 20. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary

Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha.
 - I. Dr. Ram Raj Prasad Singh, MLA (1515 to 1605 hours)
 - II. Shrimati Sukumari Devi, MLA (1605 to 1710 hours)
 - III. Bihar Mahila Samaj:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Kanak Roy
- (ii) Shrimati Raj Kumari Shabnam (1710 to 1745 hours)
- 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Members' Reading Room in Bihar Vidhan Sabha Secretariat Patna at 0900 hours on Tuesday, the 20th October, 1981.

XX

TWENTIETH SITTING

20-10-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 20 October, 1981 from 0910 to 1225 hours and again from 1440 to 1545 hours at Members Reading Room in Bihar Vidhan Sabha Secretariat Building, Patna.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 4. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 5. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 6. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 7. Shri R. S. Sparrow

- 8. Shri Trilok Chand
- 9. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

- 10. Shri Ramachandra Bharadwaj
- 11. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 12. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 13. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 14. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 15. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following representatives of State Government of Bihar, the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
- I. State Government of Bihar

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri P. P. Nayar, Chief Secretary
- (ii) Shri R. N. Dash, Home Secretary.
- (iii) Shri A. P. Sinha, Law Secretary
- (iv) Shri Fazal Ahmed, I. G. Police
- (v) Shri Kailashpati Additional I. G. (CID) (0910 to 1200 hours)
- III. Patna Women's College, Patna University, Patna Spokesmen:
 - (i) Shrimati Sunita Chowdhry
 - (ii) Shrimati Nidhi Sinha

(1200 to 1215 hours)

III. Shrimati Ramanika Gupta, MLA

(1215 to 1225 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 1400 hours.

- 3. The Committee re-assembled at 1440 hours and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following Women's Social Organisations, individuals etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
- I. Social Welfare Advisory Board, Patna

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Anusuya Jayaswal, Chairman
- (ii) Shrimati Mukul Jha, Vice-Chairman (1420 to 1455 hours)

V. All India Women's Conference, Patna

Spokesmen:

:

Dr. (Mrs.) Uma Sinha, President (1500 to 1515 hours)

- VI. (a) Syed Shamseer Rahman, Public Prosecutor
 - (b) Shri Siddheswari Prasad Singh, Senior Advocate (1515 to 1530 hours)
- VII. (i) Shri U. N. Sinha, IAS (Retd.)
 - (ii) Shrimati Radhika Devi, Ex-MLA (1530 to 1545 hours)
 - 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Bhubaneswar on Wednesday, the 22nd October, 1981 at 1000 hours.

XXI

Twentyfirst Sitting

22-10-1981

The Committee sat on Thursday, 22 October, 1981 from 1000 to 1255 hours at Conference Hall, Orissa Secretariat, Bhubaneswar.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 5. Shri K. S. Naravana
- 6. Shri Trilok Chand
- 7. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 8. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajva Sabha

- 9. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 10. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 11. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 12. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 13. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 14. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS Shri S. C. Bablani—Under Secretary

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following representatives of Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
- I. Congress (I) Ganesh Ghat, Cuttack

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Indira Mitra
- (ii) Shri Basant K. Behra, Advocate
- (iii) Shrimati Mamta Das, Advocate
- (iv) Shri J. K. Patnaik, Chartered Accountant (1000 to 1105 hours)
- II. State Social Welfare Advisory Board, Bhubaneswar

Spokesmen:

- (i) Dr. (Mrs.) Belarani Dutta, Chairman
- (ii) Shrimati Apala Mitra, Social Worker, Bhubaneswar (1105 to 1115 hours)
- III. Utkal Mahila Samiti, Cuttack

Spokesmen:

- (i) Dr. Nirupama Rath
- (ii) Mrs. Nabanita Roy
- (iii) Shrimati Neeroda Prabha Patnaik
- (iv) Shrimati Shantilata Bhuyan
- (v) Shrimati Chandraprabha Patnaik (1115 to 1205 hours)
- IV. Orissa Nari Seva Sangha, Cuttack

Spokesmen:

- (i) Dr. Jyotsna Dei
- (ii) Shrimati Padmalaya Das (1205 to 1220 hours)
- V. Prajatanatra, Cuttack-2

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri Chandrasekhar Mohapatra, Editor
- (ii) Shri Saroj Ranjan Mohanty (1220 to 1235 hours)
- VI. Utkal Journalists Association, Bhubaneswar
 (Affiliated to Indian Federation of Working Journalists)

Spokesman:

Shri N. K. Swami—President (1235 to 1255 hours)

....

3. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at Conference Mall Oriesa Secretariat Building, Bhubaneswar on Friday, the 23rd October, 1981 at 09.00 hours.

XXII

Twenty-second Sitting

23-10-1981

The Committee sat on Friday, 23 October, 1981 from 09.00 hours to 11.45 hours at Conference Hall, Orissa Secretariat, Bhubaneswar.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 6. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 7. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 8. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 9. Shri Trilok Chand
- 10. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 11. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 12. Shri Amarprosed Chakraborty
- 13. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 14. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 15. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 16. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary.

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the representatives of State Government of Orissa/individuals etc. the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. State Government of Orissa:

Spokesmen:

(i) Shri Gobinda Das. Advocate General

- (ii) Shri Krishna Prasad Mohapatra, Secretary Law
- (iii) Shri Narasinha Swain, IPS
 1.G. Police

B.

- (iv) Shri Sudhansu Mohan, Patnaik, IAS, Additional Secretary Home Department. (09.00 to 11.30 hours)
- II. Shrimati Jayanti Patnaik, M.P. (11.30 to 11.45 hours)
- 3. A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at New Delhi on Monday the 2nd November, 1981 at 11.00 hours.

XXIII

Twenty-third Sitting

2-11-1981

The Committee sat on Monday, 2 November, 1981 from 11.15 to 13.00 hours and again from 15.00 to 17.35 hours in Committee Room B, Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar--Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 6. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 7. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 8. Shri R. K. Mhalgi
- 9. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 10. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 11. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 12. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 13. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 14. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 15. Shri Trilok Chand
- 16. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 17. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

7

- 18. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 19. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 20. Shri S. W. Dhabe

- 21. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 22. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 23. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 24. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 25. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 26. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
 - 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's and Voluntary Social Organisations etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Stree Sangharash, New Delhi:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Ms. Radha Kumar
- (ii) Ms. E'n Lall
- (iii) Ms. Jessica Mahadevan

(11.15 to 12.20 hours)

IL Karmika, New Delhi:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Ms. Urvashi Butalia
- (ii) Ms. Archana Sant

(12.20 to 13.00 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

3. The Committee re-assembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence of the following Organisations/Associations from 15.00 to 17.25 hours. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following persons, Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:

III. Delhi University

(Faculty of Law)

Spokesmen:

- (i) Prof. (Smt.) Lotika Sarkar
- (ii) Shri Raghunath V. Kelakar
- (iii) Dr. Upendra Baxi, Professor of Law. (15.00 to 16.50 hours)

IV Guild of Service, Delhi Branch Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Sunanda Bhandare,
 Advocate, Supreme Court,
 Chairman Legal Aid Committee
- (ii) Shrimati (Dr.) Razia Doshi, Hony. Secretary, Guild of Service. (16.50 to 17.35 hours)

A verbatim record of the evidence was kept.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 11.00 hours at Gemmittee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi, on Tuesday, the 3rd November, 1981.

XXIV

Twenty-fourth Sitting

3-11-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 3 November, 1981 from 11.45 to 18.45 hours and again from 15.00 to 17.45 hours in Parliament House Assess, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 6. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 7. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 8. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 9. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 13. Shri Trilok Chand
- 14. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 15. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 16. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 17. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 18. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 19. Shri S. W. Dhabe

- 20. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 21. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 22. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 23. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 24. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. At the outset some Members suggested that the Committee should hold their sittings in Rajasthan and Gujarat to hear the views of the representatives of the Women's and Social Organisations. While emphasising the importance and urgency of getting the proposed legislation enacted, the Chairman expressed his desire that the Committee might complete the task assigned to them at the earliest. Accordingly the Committee decided to hold their next series of sittings from 16th to 19th November, 1961 to take up clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill. The Committee also decided that the Members might send their notices of amendments to the Bill, if any, to this Secretariat by the 12th November, 1961.
- 3. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following Women's Social Organisations, individuals etc., the Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:
 - I. Shri K. F. Rustamji,

(11.30 to 13.00 hours)

II. All India Co-ordination Committee of Working Women, New Delhi (Centre of Indian Trade Union)

Spokesmen:

- (i) Miss R. Vaigai
- (ii) Shrimati Kitty Menon
- (iii) Shrimati Brinda Karat

(13.10 to 13.30 hours)

III. National Federation of Indian Women, New Delhi:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shrimati Vimla Farooqi
- (ii) Shrimati Man Mohini Sahgal
- (iii) Shrimati Primla Loomba

(13.30 to 13.45 hours)

The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 15.00 hours.

4. The Committee re-assembled and resumed hearing of oral evidence from 15.00 to 17.45 hours. Before the Committee proceeded to hear the oral evidence of the following persons, Chairman drew their attention to the provisions contained in Direction 58 of the Directions by the Speaker under the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha:

IV. Shri Ram Jethmalani, M. P.

(15.00 to 15.50 hours)

V. Shri C. R. Irani,

Chairman,

Press Freedom Sub-Committee
The Indian and Eastern Newspaper Society,

New Delhi.

(15.50 to 16.30 hours)

VI. Shrimati Shyamala Pappu

Senior Advocate, Supreme Court of India.

(16.30 to 16.50 hours)

VII. Delhi Administration. Delhi:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Shri D. K. Das, IAS Secretary (Home).
- (ii) Shri Lokeshwar Prasad Secretary (Law and Judicial).

(17.10 to 17.25 hours)

VIII. Government of Tamil Nadu:

Spokesmen:

- (i) Thiru S. Vadivelu,

 Secretary to Government (Law Department)
- (ii) Thiru K. Chockalingam, Second Secretary-cum-Home Secretary

(17.25 to 17.45 hours)

- 5. A verbatim record of evidence was kept.
- 6. The Committee then adjourned.

XXV

Twenty-Fifth Sitting

16-11-1981

The Committee sat on Monday, 16 November, 1981 from 11.30 to 13.15 hours and again from 1510 to 1710 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi

- 4. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 5. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 6. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 9. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 13. Shri Trilok Chand
- 14. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

- 15. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 16. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 17. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 18. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 19. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 20. Shri Era Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Smt. V, S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel:
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.
- 3. Shri R. B. Aggarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. At the outset some members suggested that the Chairman, Law Commission might be heard before the Committee proceeded with the clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill. The Committee did not agree to this suggestion on the ground that his views were already available in the Eighty-fourth Report of the Law Commission on which the amending Bill was based.
- 3. Thereafter, the Committee took up clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill and held general discussion on clause 2.
- 4. The Committee then adjourned at 13.15 hours and reassembled at 45.00 hours.

Further consideration of the clause was held over.

- 5. The Committee then took up clause 3 of the Bill and held general discussion thereon. The discussion was not concluded.
- 6. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 10.00 hours on Tuesday, the 17th November, 1981.

XXVI

Twenty-Sixth Sitting

17-11-1981

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 17 November, 1981 from 1015 to 1330 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 4. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 5. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 6. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 7. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 8. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 9. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 10. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 11. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 12. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 13. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 14. Shri Trilok Chand
- 15. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 16. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 17. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 18. Shri Ramachandra Bharadwaj
- 19. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 20. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 21. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 22. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 23. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 24. Shri Era Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislatives Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh—Assistant Legislative Counsel.
- 3. Shri R. B. Aggarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. The Committee resumed general discussion on Clause 3 of the Bill. The discussion was not concluded.
- 3. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 10.00 hours on Wednesday, the 18th November, 1981.

XXVII

Twenty-Seventh Sitting

18-11-1981

The Committee sat on Wednesday, 18 November, 1981 from 1010 to 1250 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 6. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 9. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 14. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 15. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 16. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 17. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 18. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 19. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 20. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 21. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri Ram Kishofe-Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.
- 3. Shri R. B. Aggarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

2. The Committee resumed discussion on Clause 3 of the Bill. The discussion was not concluded.

- 3. The Committee, while considering their future programme of work, felt that as they had yet to consider (i) all the suggestions contained in the memoranda received by the Committee from different parts of the country (ii) suggestions made by various witnesses before the Committee and also to take up consideration of amendments to various clauses given notice of by Members, it would not be possible for them to complete the work and present their Report by the stipulated date i.e. the 27th November, 1981. The Committee, therefore, decided to seek further extension of time for the presentation of their Report by the last day of the first week of the Budget Session, 1982. The Committee authorised the Chairman and, in his absence Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar M.P., to move the necessary motion in the House to that effect.
 - 4. The Committee then adjourned.

XXVIII

Twenty-Eighth sitting

17-12-1981

The Committee sat on Thursday, 17 December, 1981 from 1530 to 1600 hours in Committee Room No. 62, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 4. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 5. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 6. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 7. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 8. Shri Trilok Chand
- 9. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 10. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 11. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 12. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 13. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 14. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 15. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.
- · 2. Shri Ram Kishore—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

3. Shri R. B. Aggarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. The Committee considered their future programme of work and decided to hold their next series of sittings on the 21st, 22nd, 23rd and 25th January, 1982 for resuming general discussion on the clauses of the Bill.
 - 3. The Committee then adjourned.

XXIX

Twenty-Ninth sitting

21-1-1982

The Committee sat on Thursday, 21 January, 1982 from 1100 to 1310 hours and again from 1500 to 1700 hours in Committee Room 'C', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT.

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 6. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 11. Shri Trilok Chand
- 12. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 13. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 14. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 15. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 16. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 17. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 18. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 19. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 20. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring

SECRETARIAT

1. Shrl S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Aggarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary.

- 2. The Committee resumed discussion on Clause 3 of the Bill.
- 3. The Committee then adjourned at 1310 hours and reassembled at 1500 hours.
- 4. The Committee resumed discussion on Clause 3 of the Bill. The discussion was not concluded.
- 5. The Committee adjourned to meet again at 1100 hours on Friday, 22 January, 1982.

XXX

Thirtieth Sitting

22-1-1982

The Committee sat on Friday, 22 January, 1982 from 1100 to 1330 hours and again from 1500 to 1700 hours in Committee Room No. 'C', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS.

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 6. Shrimati Mohsina Kidwai
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukhërjee
- 8. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 9. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 10. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 13. Shri Trilok Chand
- ¹ 14. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 15. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 16. Shri Ramchandra Bhardwaj
- 17. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 18. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 19. Shri B. Ibrahim

- 20. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 21. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 22. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 23. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 24. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary

- 2. The Committee resumed discussion on clause 3 of the Bill. Discussion on this clause was concluded and clause 4 was taken up.
- 3. The Committee then adjourned at 1330 hours and reassembled at 1500 hours.
- 4. The Committee considered their future programme of work and decided to hold next series of sittings from 8 to 11 February, 1982 to take up clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.
- 5. The Committee discussed clauses 4 to 8 of the Bill. The discussion on clause 8 was not concluded.
- 6. In view of traffic restrictions due to full dress Rehearsal of Republic Day Parade on 23-1-1982, the Committee decided to cancel their sitting in the morning from 1100 to 1300 hours on 23 January, 1982.
- 7. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 1400 hours on Saturday, 23 January, 1982.

XXXI

Thirty-First sitting

23-1-1982

The Committee sat on Saturday, 23 January, 1982 from 1400 to 1600 hours in Committee Room 'C', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar—Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi

- 5. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 11. Shri Trilok Chand
- 12. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 13. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj:
- 15. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 19. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing)
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary

- 2. The Committee resumed discussion on clause 8 of the Bill. The discussion was not concluded.
- 3. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 1100 hours on Monday, 25 January, 1982.

XXXII

Thirty-Second Sitting

25-1-1982

The Committee sat on Monday, 25 January, 1982 from 1100 to 1230 hours in Committee Room 'C', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 4. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 5. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee

- 7. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 8. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 9. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 10. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 11. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 12. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 13. Shri Trilok Chand
- 14. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 15. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

- 16. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 17. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 18. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 19. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 20. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 21. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 22. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing)
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary

- 2. The Committee resumed discussion on clause 8 of the Bill. Discussion was concluded.
- 3. The Committee decided to cancel their sitting scheduled to be held today in the afternoon from 1500 to 1700 hours.
- 4. The Committee also decided to hold their next series of sittings from 8 to 11 February, 1982 for clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill. The Committee might also sit on Friday, 12 February, 1982, if necessary.
 - 5. The Committee then adjourned.

XXXIII

Thirty-Third Sitting

8-2-1982

The Committee sat on Monday 8 February, 1982 from 1100 to 1300 hours and again from 1500 to 17.15 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra

- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 6. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 7. Shri Trilok Chand
- 8. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 9. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

- 10. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 11. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 12. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 13. Shri V. P Munusamy
- 14. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 15. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 16. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer
- 2. Shri M. G. Agrawal-Senior Legislative Committee Officer

L'EGISLATIVE COUNSELS .

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2: Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing)
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri P. K. Kathpalia—Additional Secretary
- 2. Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary
- 2. At the outset, the Chairman informed the Members about the circulation of three Lists containing amendments given notice of by Members. He explained that List I contained Consolidated Amendments; List II—Consolidated General Suggestions and List III—Consolidated Amendments/General Suggestions received under Rule 301 of the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha.
- 3. The Committee decided that the Record of Evidence tendered before the Committee at New Delhi and other places should be printed and laid on the Table of the House as it would be beneficial for Members of both Houses of Parliament to know the views and opinions of the cross sections of society on the growing problem of rape cases in the country.
- 4. The Committee then took up discussion of Clause 2 of the Bill with reference to the amendments given notice of, and general suggestions made, by Members with a view to formulate their views and arrive at a consensus. Members present at the sitting, moved their amendments and the discussion thereon was concluded. Amendments of other members, who were absent from the sitting, were taken as not moved.
- 5. The Committee then adjourned at 1300 hours and reassembled at 1500 hours.
- 6. The Committee then took up Clause 3 of the Bill and considered the amendments of those Members who were present at the sitting. The discussion on these amendments was not concluded.

7. The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Tuesday, 9 February, 1962 at 1000 hours instead of at 1100 hours for further clause by-clause consideration of the Bill.

XXXIV

Thirty-Fourth Sitting

9-2-1982

The Committee sat on Tuesday 9 February, 1982 from 1000 to 1280 hours and again from 1500 to 1700 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 6. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 7. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 8. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 9. Shri Trilok Chand
- 10. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghayan
- 11. Shri P. Venkatasubbajah

Rajya Sabha

7

- 12. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 13. Shri Ramachandra Bharadwaj
- 14. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 15. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 16. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 19. Shri V. P. Munusamv
- 20. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 21. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer
- 2. Shri M. G. Agarwal-Senior Legislative Committee Officer

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative
 Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, (Official Languages Wing).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri P. K. Kathpalia—Additional Secretary.
- 2. Shri S. C. Bablani-Under Secretary.

- 2. The Committee took up further consideration of Clause 3 of the Bill with reference to the amendments given notice of, and general suggestions made, by Members with a view to formulate their views and arrive at a consensus.
- 3. The Committee adjourned at 1230 hours and re-assembled at 1500 hours.
- 4. The Committee resumed consideration of amendments to Clause 3 of the Bill but the discussion thereon was not concluded.
- 5. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 1100 hours on Wednesday, 10 February, 1982 for further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.

XXXV

Thirty-fifth Sitting

10-2-1982

The Committee sat on Wednesday 10 February, 1982 from 1100 to 1300 hours and again from 1500 to 1700 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 5. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 6. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 7. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 8. Shri Trilok Chand
- 9. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan

Rajya Sabha

- 10. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 11. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 12. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 13. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 14. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 15. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 16. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 17. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 18. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs (Legislative Department) (Official Languages Wing).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri P. K. Kathpalia-Additional Secretary.

- 2. The Committee resumed further discussion on Clause 3 of the Bill with reference to the amendments given notice of, and general suggestions made, by Members.
- 3. The Committee then adjourned at 1300 hours and reassembled at 1500 hours.
- 4. The Committee continued their discussion on these amendments. Members present at the sitting moved their amendments. The Committee decided that suitable recommendations based on 5 amendments (Nos. 80, 84, 92, 93 and 94 contained in the List of Amendments No. I—See Annexure), might be incorporated in the Report of the Committee as "General Recommendations". Amendments of other Members, who were absent from the sitting, were taken as not moved. The discussion was not concluded.
- 5. The Committee further decided that the tape containing proceedings of the sittings of the Joint Committee held at Simla on 30 June and 1 July, 1981 received from the State Government of Himachal Pradesh, might be destroyed now as it was no more required.
- 6. The Committee then adjourned to meet again at 1100 hours on Thursday, 11 February, 1982 for further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.

ANNEXURE

GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS

(Vide paragraph 4 of Minutes dated 10-2-1962)

[Amendments contained in the List No. 1 of Consolidated List of Amendments given notice of by Members which were accepted by the Committee for inclusion in the Report as "General Recommendations"]

Sl. Name of Member and text of Amendment Clause No. No.

Shri S. W. Dhabe:

80, Page 3,-

after line 28

insert "(ee) commits a rape on the woman of unsound mind or on a blind or deaf and dumb woman or a physically or mentally disabled woman; or"

Shrimati Suseela Gopalan:

84. Page 3, after line 29, insert

"(g) committed rape on a woman in his employment directly or indirectly or even when he has economic dominance, directly or indirectly,"

SHRIMATI GEETA MUKHERJEE:

92. Page 3,—

after line 49, insert

"Explanation 4,—Where a woman is raped under economic domination or influence or control or authority which includes domination by landlords, officials, management personnel, contractors, employers, and

3

3

Si. Name of Member and text of Amendment

Clause No.

No.

money lenders either by himself or by persons hired by him, each of the persons shall be deemed to have committed power rape within the meaning of this sub-section".

SHRI S. W. DHABE:

93. Page 3,-

after line 49, insert

"(3) whoever either employer or a servant of any undertaking private or cooperative or the landlord both in urban and rural areas commits a rape on the woman is working under him shall be punished with rigorous imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than ten years but which may be for life and shall also be liable to fine provided the court may for adequate and special reasons to be mentioned in the judgement impose a sentence of imprisonment of either description for a term of less than ten years but to a minimum term of five years."

Explanation: "employer" in this sub-section includes the agent of an employer or manager, superior officer or the contractor.

SHRIMATI SUSEELA GOPALAN:

94. Page 3,-

after line 49, insert

"Explanation 4.—When a woman is raped under 'eeonomie dominance' it includes dominance by landlords, contractors, employers and money-lenders whether by himself or persons hired by him."

XXXVI

Thirty-Sixtn Sitting

11-2-1982

The Committee sat on Thursday, 11 February, 1982 from 1100 to 1906 hours and again from 1500 to 1700 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 3. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 4. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 5. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 6. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 7. Shri Trilok Chand
- 8. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 9. Shr! P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 10. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 11. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 12. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 13. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 14. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 15. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 16. Shri V. P. Mumisamy
- 17. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 18. Shri Era Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer

Shri M. G. Agrawal—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel
- 2. Shri R. B. Agrawal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages, Wing).

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri P. K. Kathpalia-Additional Secretary
- 2. Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary,
- 2. At the outset, the Committee, while assessing the quantum of work before them, felt that as they had still to take up clause-by-clause consideration and to complete other stages of the Bill, it would not be possible for them to present their report by the stipulated date, i.e. 19 February, 1982. The Committee, therefore, decided to seek further extension of time for presentation of their Report by the last day of the penultimate week of the Monsoon Session, 1982. Accordingly, the Chairman, and in his absence Shri R. S. Sparrow, was authorised to move necessary motion in the House to that effect.
- 3. The Committee then resumed further discussion on Clause 3 of the Bill with reference to the amendments given notice of, and general suggestions made, by members. Members present at the sitting moved their amendments and discussion thereon was concluded. Amendments of other Members, who were absent from the sitting, were taken as not moved.
- 4. The Committee adjourned at 1300 hours and reassembled at 1500 hours.
- 5. The Committee then took up discussion of Clauses 4 to 8 of the Bill with reference to the amendments given notice of, and general suggestions made, by Members. Members present at the sitting moved their amendments and discussion thereon was concluded. Amendments of other Members who were absent from the sitting were taken as not moved.
- 6. The Committee decided that suitable recommendations based on 4 "General Suggestions" (Nos. 7, 24, 27 and 28 contained in the List of "General Suggestions" in List No. II, see Annexure), although these were beyond the scope of the Bill, might, however, be incorporated in the Report of the Joint Committee as "General Recommendations".
 - 7. The Committee then adjourned.

ANNEXURE

GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS

(Vide paragraph 6 of Minutes dated 11-2-1982)

[General Suggestions contained in List -II of Consolidated List of General Suggestions given notice of by Members which were accepted by the Committee for inclusion in the Report as "General Recommendations."]

Sl. No.

Name of Member and text of General Suggestion

Clause No

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI:

SHRI BAPUSAHEB PARULEKAR:

SHRIMATI GEETA MUKHERJEE:

SHRIMATI SUSEELA GOPALAN:

SHRIS. W. DHABE:

7. Page 4, after line 31, insert

3A (New)

'In the Code of Criminal Procedure after section 46(3) the following new sub-section shall be inserted, namely:

"(4) Except in unavoidable circumstances, no woman shall be arrested after sunset and before sunrise, and where such unavoidable circumstances exist, the police officer shall by making a written report, obtain the prior permission of his immediate superior officer for effecting such arrest or, if the case is one of extreme urgency, he shall, after making the arrest, forthwith report the matter in writing to his immediate superior officer with the reasons for arrest and the reasons for not taking prior permission as aforesaid."

SHRI S. W. DHABE:

24. Page 5, after line 15, insert

6A (Ncw)

- '6A. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 after clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 357 the following clause shall be inserted namely:—
- "(e) when any person who is convicted under section 354, 354A, 376, 376A, 376B, 376C of Indian Penal Code, the person against whom an offence is committed shall be awarded compensation sufficient to rehabilitate her in life and also in the case of the death of person against whom the offence is committed to her legal representatives in the special circumstances of the case."

SHRIMATI GEETA MUKHERJEE : SHRIMATI SUSEELA GOPALAN :

27. Page 5, after line 15, insert

6A ... (New)

- '6A. After section 417 of the Criminal Procedure Code, the following sections shall be inserted namely:
- "417A—No woman shall be arrested and lodged in police lock up at night between 8 P.M. and 6 A,M. in the morning.

3

417B—Where a woman is arrested and there are no suitable arrangements in the locality for keeping her in custody in a place of detention exclusively meant for women, she shall be sent to an institution established and maintained for the reception, care, protection and welfare of children, licensed under the Women's and Children's Institutions (Licensing). Act, 1956 or an institution recognised by the State Government, except in case where any special law requires that she should be sent to a protective home or other place of detention authorised for purposes of such special law."

SHRI S. W. DHABE:

1

. !

28 Page 5, after line 15, insert

6A (New)

- '6A. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 after section 417 the following section shall be inserted namely:—
- "417A. Where a woman is arrested and there are no suitable arrangements in the locality for keeping her in custody in a place of detention exclusively meant for woman,, she shall be sent to a an institution established and maintained for the reception, care, protection and welfare of woman or children, licensed under the Women's and Children's Institutions (Licensing) Act, 1956 or an institution recognised by the State Government, except in cases where any special law requires that she should be sent to a protective home or other place of detention authorised for the purposes of such special law."

XXXVII

Thirty-Seventh Sitting

2-8-1982

The Committee sat on Monddy, 2 August, 1982 from 15.30 to 16.25 hours in Committee Room No. 62, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Gurbinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- . 6. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar
 - 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee

- 8. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 9. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 11. Shri Trilok Chand
- 12. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 13. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 14. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwai
- 15. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 16. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 17. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 18. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri H. G. Paranjpe—Joint Secretary.
- 2. Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.
- 3. Shri T. E. Jagannathan—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary.

- 2. At the outset, the Chairman apprised the Committee about the progress of work done so far and observed that he had consulted the Minister of State in the Ministry of Home Affairs and Department of Parliamentary Affairs in connection with Government amendments which they had promised to place before the Committee. He further informed the Committee that he had received a letter from the Ministry of Home Affairs stating that due to unavoidable delay in finalisation of Government amendments, the Committee might be requested to seek further extension of time for presentation of their Report. Thereafter, the Minister of State in the Ministry of Home Affairs and Department of Parliamentary Affairs (Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah) explained that the Government amendments had already been forwarded to the Legal Affairs Department of the Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs for vetting. After these were vetted by them, the amendments would be placed before the Cabinet for their approval and thereafter, he would send notices of amendments to the Lok Sabha Secretariat. He, therefore, suggested that the Committee might seek further extension of time till the last week of the Winter Session, 1982.
- 3. Keeping in view the request made by the Government; the quantum of work involved; and the paucity of time at their disposal, the Committee felt that it would not be possible for them to present their Report by the stipulated date, i.e. 7 August, 1982. After some discussion, the Committee decided to seek further extension of time for presentation of their Report up to the first day of the last week of the Winter Session, 1982. The Committee, therefore, authorised the

Chairman and, in his absence, Shri R. S. Sparrow, to move necessary motion in the House to that effect on 5 August, 1982.

- 4. The Committee then decided to hold their next sittings on 14 and 15 September, 1982 to consider Government amendments in that regard.
 - 5. The Committee then adjourned.

XXXVIII

Thirty-Eighth Sitting

14-9-1982

The Committee sat on Tuesday, 14 September, 1982 from 1100 to 1200 hours in Committee Room 'B', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

2. Shri K. Arjunan

**., .

- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 4. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 5. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 6. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 7. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar
- 8. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 9. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 10. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 11. Shri Bapusaheb Parulekar
- 12. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 13. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 14. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 15. Shri Trilok Chand
- 16. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 17. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 18. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 19. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 20. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 21. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 22. Shri Surendra Mohanty
- 23. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 24. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.
- 2. Shri P. S. Ananthanarayanan-Under Secretary.
- 2. At the outset, the Chairman apprised the Committee about the progress of work done so far. He observed that during the last sitting of the Committee held on 2-8-1982, the Minister of State for Home Affairs (Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah) had stated that the Government amendments had already been forwarded to the Legal Affairs Department of the Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs for vetting and after those were vetted by them, the amendments would be placed before the Cabinet for their approval and thereafter, he would send notice of amendments to the Lok Sabha Secretariat. The Chairman further informed the members that Government amendments had, however, not been received by the Lok Sabha Secretariat as yet.
- 3. The Minister of State for Home Affairs (Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah) explained that the amendments had since been vetted by the Legal Affairs Department of the Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs and were pending with the Cabinet for approval. He hoped that the amendments would be cleared by the Cabinet very shortly. He further stated that the Government was equally keen to expedite the matter like Members of the Committee. After the amendments had been cleared by the Cabinet, those would be sent to the Lok Sabha Secretariat for consideration by the Committee. He, therefore, suggested that the present series of sittings scheduled to be held in the afternoon at 15.00 hours on 14 September and again on 15 and 16 September, 1982 might be cancelled.
- 4. Thereafter, several members of the Committee including Sarvashri N. K. Shejwalkar, Lal K. Advani, Bapusaheb Parulekar, V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo, Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav, Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee and Shrimati Suseela Gopalan, observed that the tabling of Government amendments had already been unduly delayed and the work of the Committee hampered as a result thereof. They further stated that Members of the Committee were being criticised for the delay both inside and outside Parliament. The Members, including Sarvashri R. S. Sparrow and K. S. Narayana, were of the view that Government amendments should be expedited without any further delay and that they were prepared to attend the sittings of the Committee even if these were held in the Mornings/Evenings or on Saturdays/Sundays during the Session in order to complete the work and present their report by the stipulated date (i.e. 2 November, 1982).
- 5. Keeping in view the request made by the Minister of State for Home Affairs (Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah), the Committee, after some

discussion, decided that their sittings scheduled to be held in the after noon that day and on 15 and 16 September, 1982 be cancelled.

- 6. The Committee then authorised the Chairman to fix date and time of their next sittings after receipt of the Government amendments.
- 7. Thereafter, some members raised the question as to whether the amendments given notice of by them to the clauses of the Bill, which could not be taken up due to their absence from the sittings of the Committee when the relevant clauses of the Bill were discussed by the Committee earlier, could also be taken up for discussion by the Committee at the time of discussion on the Government amendments as, during the clause-by-clause consideration, the clauses had not been finally adopted with or without amendments. The Chairman stated that the matter would be considered and decided by him in accordance with the rules when discussion on the Government amendments takes place.
 - 8. The Committee then adjourned.

XXXIX

Thirty-Ninth Sitting

30-9-1982

The Committee sat on Thursday, 30 September, 1982 from 11.00 to 11.30 hours in Committee Room 'A', Parliament House Annexe, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri K. Arjunan
- 3. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 4. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 5. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 6. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri K. S. Narayana
- 9. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 10. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 11. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 12. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar
- 13. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 14. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 15. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 16. Shri S. W. Dhabe

- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 18. Shri Era Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL

Shrimati V. S. Rama Devi—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

- 1. Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary
- 2. Shri P. S. Ananthanarayanan—Under Secretary.
- 2. At the outset, the Chairman informed the members that the Government Amendments and Fresh Amendments given notice of by Shri Lal K. Advani, M.P. had already been circulated to them. He further observed that members were requested to table Fresh Amendments in the light of the Government Amendments by 27 September, 1982. Thereupon, several members expressed that as they did not have sufficient time to study the Government Amendments and to give notice of Fresh Amendments, the time for giving notices of Fresh Amendments should be extended. After some discussion, the Committee decided to extend the time upto 6 October, 1982 for giving notices of Fresh Amendments by Members.
- 3. The Committee, thereafter, decided to hold their next sitting at 09.00 hours on Friday, 8 October, 1982 for Clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill vis-a-vis Government Amendments and Fresh Amendments from Members.
 - 4. The Committee then adjourned.

XL

Fortieth Sitting

8-10-1982

The Committee sat on Friday, 8 October, 1982 from 09.30 to 11.00 hours in Committee Room No. 62, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

. . 1 1 .

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar

9. Shri Trilok Chand

; ·

10. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 11. Shri Lal K, Advani
- 12. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 13. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 14. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 15. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 16. Shri Era Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shri S. Ramaiah-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

Representative of the Ministry of Home Affairs Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary

- 2. The Committee took up for discussion Clause 2 of the Bill with reference to the (i) Government Amendments given notice of and moved by the Minister of State for Home Affairs and (ii) Fresh Amendments, etc. moved and given notice of by the members concerned. The discussion was not concluded. The Committee then decided to resume the discussion on this Clause at the next sitting to be held at 09.30 hours on 11 October, 1982.
- 3. Thereafter, the Chairman announced that in order to complete their work and present their Report by the stipulated date (i.e. 2-11-1982), a tentative programme (ANNEXURE) had been drawn and he sought cooperation of members for adherence of the same. The Committee decided to discuss the tentative programme at their next sitting.
 - 4. The Committee then adjourned.

ANNEXURE

(Vide Paragraph 3 of the Minutes)

JOINT COMMITTEE ON THE CRIMINAL LAW (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1980

Tentative Schedule for completion and presentation of Report of the Committee

I. Dates for Clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill

8-10-1982 11-10-1982

> to 14-10-1982

Dates for the preparation of Draft Report .	15-10-1982 to 20-10-1982	
Dates for vetting and verification of Draft Report by Ministry of Home and Ministry of Law.	20-10-1982 to 22-10-1982	
Date for approval of Drast Report by Chairman.	22-10-1982	
Date for receipt of uncorrected proof copies of the Bill, as amended by the Committee (both English and Hindi versions) from the Ministry of Law.	22-10-1982	
Date for circulation of the Draft Report and the Bill, as amended, to Members of the Committee.	23-10-1982	
Date for consideration and adoption of Bill as amended, and the Draft Report by the Committee.	25-10-1982	
Date for receipt of Minutes of Dissent if any, from the Members by the Secretariat.	29-10-1982	
Date of presentation of Report to Lok Sabha and laying a copy thereof on the Table of Rajya Sabha.	(10.00 hours) 2-11-1982	
	Date for approval of Draft Report by Chairman. Date for receipt of uncorrected proof copies of the Bill, as amended by the Committee (both English and Hindi versions) from the Ministry of Law. Date for circulation of the Draft Report and the Bill, as amended, to Members of the Committee. Date for consideration and adoption of Bill as amended, and the Draft Report by the Committee. Date for receipt of Minutes of Dissent if any, from the Members by the Secretariat. Date of presentation of Report to Lok Sabha and	

XLI

Forty-second Sitting

11-10-1982

The Committee sat on Monday, 11 October, 1982 from 15.30 to 18.00 hours in Committee Room No. 62, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- a 8. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar
- 9. Shri R. S. Sparrow

ا ع

- 10. Shri Trilok Chand
- 11. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 12. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 13. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 14. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 15. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena

SECRETARIAT

1. Shri H. G. Paranjpe-Joint Secretary

...

2. Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shri S. Ramaiah-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing)
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary.

- 2. The Committee resumed further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill vis-a-vis (i) the Government Amendment given notice of and moved by the Minister of State for Home Affairs and (ii) Fresh Amendments etc. given notice of and moved by the members concerned.
 - 3. Clause 2.—The following amendments were accepted:
 - (i) Page 1, for lines 8 to 22,
 - substitute "228A (1) Whoever prints or publishes the name or any matter which may make known the identity of any person against whom an offence under section 376, section 376A, section 376B, section 376C or section 376D is alleged or found to have been committed (hereinafter in this section referred to as the victim) shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years and shall also be liable to fine:
 - (2) Nothing in sub-section (1) extends to any printing or publication of the name or any matter which may make known the identity of the victim if such printing or publication is—
 - (a) by or under the order in writing of the officer-in-charge of the police station or the police officer making the investigation into such offence acting in good faith for the purposes of such investigation; or
 - (b) by or with the authorisation in writing of the victim; or
 - (c) where the victim is dead or minor or of unsound mind, by or with the authorisation in writing of the next of kin of the victim:
 - Provided that no such authorisation shall be given by the next of kin to anybody other than the Chairman or the Secretary, by whatever name called, of any recognised welfare institution or organisation.
 - Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section 'recognised welfare institution or organisation' means social welfare institution or organisation, recognised for the purposes of this subsection by the Central or State Government.

- (3) Whoever prints or publishes any matter in relation to any proceeding before a court with respect to an offence referred to in sub-section (1) without the previous permission of such court, shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years and shall also be liable to fine."
- (ii) Page 2, omit lines 1 to 9.

The clause, as amended, was adopted.

- 4. Clause 3.—The following amendments were accepted:
 - (i) Page 2, line 19, for "seven" substitute "six"
 - (ii) Page 2, line 22, omit "free and voluntary"
 - (iii) Page 2, lines 24-25,

for "in fear of death or of hurt or of any injury or by criminal intimidation as defined in section 503"

substitute "or any person in whom she is interested in fear of death or of hurt"

- (iv) page 2, omit lines 30 to 33.
- (v) page 2, line 34, for "Sixthly" substitute "Fifthly"
- (vi) page 2, line 36,
 after "administration by him"
 insert "personally or through another"
- (vii) Page 2, lines 38-39, omit "or is unable to offer effective resistance"
- (viii) Page 2, line 40, for "Seventhly" substitute "Sixthly"
 - (ix) Page 2, line 42, for "Explanation 1" substitute "Explanation"
 - (x) Page 2, omit lines 44-46.
 - (xi) Page 3, line 1,
 for "offence" substitute "intercourse"

Further consideration of the clause was held over.

- 5. The Committee also decided that a suitable recommendation based on Fresh General Suggestion No. 9 of the Consolidated List of Fresh Amendments/Fresh General Suggestions regarding 'molestation' (see Annexure) may be incorporated in the Report of the Committee as "General Recommendation".
- 6. The Committee then decided to hold their next sitting at 16.00 hours on Tuesday, 12 October, 1982 to resume further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.
 - 7. The Committee then adjourned.

ANNEXURE

GENERAL RECOMMENDATION

[Vid paragraph 5 of Minutes dated 11-10-1982)

[Amendment/Suggestion contained in the Consolidated List of Fresh Amendments/Fresh General Suggestions given notice of by Members which was accepted by the Committee for inclusion in the Report as "General Recommendation"]

Sl. No. Name of Member and text of Amendment

Clause No.

(FGS VI) SHRI N.K. SHEJWALKAR:

Page 2, of Bill, after line 12,

ž

RA (New)

edd the following new clause 2A.

"aA. In the Indian Penal Code, in section 100, clause
Thirdly, after the words 'of committing rape', the
following words shall be added:

'or molestation'".

XLII

Forty-Second Sitting

12-10-1982

The Committee sat on 12 October, 1982 from 1600 to 1830 hours in Committee Room No. 62, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Prof. Nirmala Kumari Shaktawat
- 9. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar
- 10. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 11. Shri Trilok Chand
- 12. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 18. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 14 Shri Lal K. Advani
- 15. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 16 Shri B. Ibrahim
- 17. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri H. G. Paranjpe—Joint Secretary.
- 2 Shri S. D. Kaura-Chief Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shri S. Ramaiah—Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing)
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS Shri S. V. Sharan—Joint Secretary

- 2. The Committee resumed further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill vis-a-vis (i) the Government Amendments given notice of and moved by the Minister of State for Home Affairs and (ii) Fresh Amendments etc. given notice of and moved by the members concerned.
- 3. Clause 3.—(vide para 4 of Minutes dated 11-10-1982)—The following further amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 3, line 7, after "liable to fine"
 - add "unless the woman raped is own wife and is not under twelve years of age, in which case, he shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years or with fine or with both".
 - (ii) Page 3, for lines 12 to 14, substitute
 - "(a) being a police officer commits rape—
 - (i) within the limits of the police station to which he is appointed; or
 - (ii) in the premises of any station house whether or not situated in the police station to which he is appointed; or
 - (iii) on a woman in his custody or in the custody of a police officer subordinate to him; or"
 - (iii) Page 3, line 19,

for "the superintendent or manager" substitute "on the management or on the staff"

(iv) Page 3, for lines 24-26,

substitute "(d) being on the management or on the staff of a hospital, takes advantage of his official position and commits rape on a woman in that hospital; or"

- (v) Page 3, after line 28, add "(f) commits rape on a woman when she is under twelve years of age; or"
- (vi) Page 3, line 29, for "(f)" substitute "(g)"
- (vii) Page 3, lines 36-37,

 for "three or more persons"

 substitute "one or more in a group of persons"
- (viii) Page 3, omit lines 40-44.
- (ix) Page 3, line 45, for "Explanation 3" substitute "Explanation 2"
- (x) Page 3, after line 49, add
 - "Explanation 3. 'Hospital' means the precincts of the hospital and includes the precincts of any institut on for the reception and treatment of persons during convalescence or of persons requiring medical attention or rehabilitation.
 - Intercourse by a man with his wife during separation.—376A.

 Whoever has sexual intercourse with his own wife, who is living separately from him under a decree of separation or under any custom or usage without her consent, shall be punished with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to two years and shall also be liable to fine.
- (xi) Page 4, line 1, for "376A" substitute "376B".
- (xii) Page 4, line 1, omit "undue"
- (xiii) Page 4, line 2,

 for "seduces"

 substitute "induces or seduces"
- (xiv) Page 4, line 8, for "376B" substitute "376C"
- (xv) Page 4, lines 11-12,
 - omit "or holding any other office in such institution by virtue of which he can exercise any authority or control over its inmates,"
- (xvi) Page 4, line 13,

(xvii) Page 4, line 13,

for "seduces" substitute "induces or seduces"

(xviii) Page 4, for lines 19 to 21,

substitute "Explanation 1. 'superintendent' in relation to a jail, remand home or other place of custody or a women's or children's institution includes a person holding any other office in such institution by virtue of which he can exercise any authority or control over its inmates.

Explanation 2. The expression 'Women's or children's institution' shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 2 of sub-section (2) of section 376".

(xix) Page 4, line 22, for "376C" substitute "376D"

(xx) Page 4, line 22,
for "being concerned with" substitute "being on"

(xxi) Page 4, line 23,

after "staff of a hospital"

insert "takes advantage of his position and"

(xxii) Page 4, line 24,

for "a woman who is receiving treatment"

substitute "any woman"

(xxiii) Page 4, for lines 28 to 31,

substitute "Explanation — The expression hospital' shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 3 of sub-section (2) of section 376."

Clause 3, as amended, was adopted.

4. Clause 4.—The following amendment was accepted:—

Page 4, for lines 32 to 53, substitute

Amendment of Section 327.—"4. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (hereinafter referred to as Criminal Procedure Code), section 327 shall be numberd as sub-section (1) of that section and after it, as so numbered, the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), the enquiry into and trial of rape or an offence under section 376, section 376A, section 376B, section 376C or section 376D of the Indian Penal Code shall be conducted in camera;

Provided that the presiding judge may, if he thinks fit, or on an application made by either of the parties, allow any particular person to have access to, or be remain in, the room or building used by the court.

(3) "Where any priceedings are held under sub-section (2), it shall not be lawful for any person to print or publish any matter in relation to any such proceedings, except with the previous parmission of the court."

Clause 4, as amended, was adopted.

45 of 1860

5. Clauses 5 and 6.—The Committee felt that there was no necessity for an express provision in the Bill for summary trial of an offence for printing or publishing the proceedings in camera. Clause 5 of the Bill was, therefore, not adopted.

Similarly clause 6, which was of a consequential nature, was also not adopted.

- 6. Clause 7.—The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 5, line 16, for "7"
 - substitute "5"
 - (ii) Page 5, line 23, column 5, for "non-bailable" substitute "bailable"
 - (iii) Page 5, lines 24-25, column 3, for "two years or fine or both" substitute "two years and fine"
 - (iv) Page 5, for lines 27—32, column 2, substitute "Printing or publication of a proceeding without prior permission of Court"
 - (v) Page 5, after line 43, insert.

1	2	3	4	5	6
	Intercourse by a man with his wife not being under twelve years of age	Imprisonment for two years or fine or both	Non-cogni- zable	Bailable	Ditto

376A	Intercourse by a man with his wife during separation	Imprisonment for two years and fine	Non-cogniz- able	Bailable	Ditto
	,)	1		

- (vi) Page 5, line 44.
 - (a) Column 1, for "376A" substitute "376B"
 - (b) Column 4, for "Ditto"

substitute "cognizable (But no arrest shall be made without a warrant or without an order of a Magistrate)"

٠.

1

- (c) Column 6, for "Magistrate of the first class" substitute "Ditto"
- (vii) Page 5, line 48, column 1, for "376B" substitute "376C"
- (viii) Page 5, line 52, column 1, for "376C" substitute "376D"

(ix) Page 5, line 55, column 2,
for "patient"
substitute "any woman in that hospital"

Clause 7, as amended, was adopted.

- 7. The Committee also decided that suitable recommendations based on Fresh General Suggestions Nos. 15 and 16 (reg. rape committed under economic dominance); Nos. 24, 25, 26, 28 and 29 (regarding medical examination of a rape victim) and No. 27 (regarding association of a social welfare officer with investigation of a rape case)—See Annexure—may be incorporated in the Report of the Committee as "General Recommendations".
- 8. The Committee then decided to hold their next sitting at 1500 hours on Wednesday, 13 October, 1982 to resume further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.
 - 9. The Committee then adjourned.

ANNEXURE

GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS

(Vide paragraph 7 of Minutes dated 12-10-1982)

[Amendments/Suggestions contained in the Consolidated List of Fresh Amendments/Fresh General Suggestions given notice of by Members which were accepted by the Committee for inclusion in the Report as "General Recommendations"]

S. No	Name of Member and text of Amendment	Clause No.
15	(F.A. 8) SHRIMATI GEETA MUKHERJEE :	
	Page 3 of Bill,	3
	after line 29, insert "(g) commits 'power rape"	
16	(F.A. 27) SHRIMATI SUSEELA GOPALAN:	
	Page 3 of Bill,	3
	after line 29, insert "(g) commits rape on a woman on whom he has economic domination directly or indirectly"	
24	(FGSI) SHRI LAL K. ADVANI:	
	Page 4, after line 53, insert	4A (New)
	"4A. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, after section 53, the following new section 53(A) shall be inserted, namely:—	, ,
	'53A (a) When a person accused of rape or an attempt to commit rape is arrested and an examination of his person is to be made under this section, he shall be forwarded without delay to the registered medical practitioner by whom he is to be examined.	

- S. No.
- (b) The registered medical practitioner conducting such examination shall without delay examine such person and prepare a report specifically recording the result of his examination and giving the following details:
- (i) the name and address of the accused and of the person by whom he was brought.
- (ii) the age of the accused.
- (iii) marks of injury, if any, on the person of the accused; and
- (iv) other material particulars in reasonable detail.
- (c) The report shall state precisely the reasons for each conclusion arrived at.
- (d) The exact time of commencement and completion of the examination shall also be noted in the report, and the registered medical practitioner shall, without delay, forward the report to the investigating officer, who shall forward it to the Magistrate referred to in section 173 as part of the documents referred to in clause (A) of sub-section (5) of that section."

25 (FGS) SHRI RASA BEHARI BEHRA :

Page 4, after line 53, insert

4A (New)

- "4A. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, after section 53, the following new section 53(A) shall be inserted, namely:—
 - '53A When a person accused of rape or an attempt to commit rape is arrested and an examination is to be made under this section, he shall be forwarded without delay to the registered medical practitioner by whom he is to be examined. (At least two registered medical practitioners should examine).
 - —the woman with whom rape is alleged to have been committed or attempted, examined by two medical experts, such examination shall be conducted by two registered Medical Practitioners, with the consent of the woman."

S. No.

26 (FGS VII) SHRI N.K. SHEJWALKAR :

Page 2 of F.A. (List No. 1)

4A (New)

In FGS-I (by Shri Lal K. Advani), in part (iv) of sub-clause (b) of proposed new section 53A, after "reasonable detail"

add "including chemical examination of semen or blood and/or its stains on the body or clothes of the person wherever possible"

28 (FGS II) SHRI LAL K. ADVANI:

Page 4, after line 53, insert

4B (New)

- "4B. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, after section 164, the following new section shall be inserted, namely:
 - "164A (1) Where, during the stage when an offence of rape or an attempt to commit rape is under investigation, it is proposed to get the person of the woman with whom rape is alleged to have been committed or attempted, examined by a medical expert, such examination shall be conducted by a registered medical practitioner, with the consent of the woman or of some person competent to give such consent on her behalf and the woman shall be referred to the registered medical practitioner without delay.
 - (2) The registered medical practitioner to whom such woman is referred, shall without delay examine her person and prepare a report specifically recording the result of his examination and giving the following details;
 - (i) the name and address of the woman and of the person by whom she was brought;
 - (ii) the age of the woman;
 - (iii) whether the victim was previously used to sexual intercourse;
 - (iv) marks of injuries, if any, on the person of the woman;
 - (v) general mental condition of the woman; and
 - (vi) other material particulars, in reasonable detail.
 - (3) The report shall state precisely the reasons for a each conclusion arrived at.

29 (FGS VIII) SHRI N. K. SHEJWALKAR:

Page 4 of F.A. (List No. 1)

(New)

In FGS-II (by Shri Lal K. Adyani) in part (vi) of sub-section (2) of proposed new section 164A.

after "reasonable detail"

add "including chemical examination of semen or blood and/or its stains on the body or clothes of the person, wherever possible."

27 (FGS III) SHRIMATI SUSEELA GOPALAN:

Page 4, after line 53, insert

- "4A. In the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, after section 173, by the following new shall be inserted, namely :-
 - (1) In case of offences against women 173A. and children every police officer investigating the case shall associate with such investigations, a social welfare officer or any representative of a recognised social welfare organisation or a woman organisation of the area and the final report to be submitted to the magistrate in pursuance of the investigation shall contain their opinion;
 - (2) In all such cases the social welfare officer or the representative of a social welfare organisation or women organisation shall be given power to prosecute the case simultenaously with the State.

173B. If after the investigation the police officer concerned is of the opinion that no offence has been committed the social welfare officer, or representative of the recognised social welfare organisation or women organisation feels otherwise the magistrate concerned shall commit the accused to trial on his or her report and allow the social welfare officer or representative of the social welfare organisation or women organisation to prosecute the case in the place of the police."

XLIII

Forty-Third Sitting

13-10-1982

The Committee sat on Wednesday, 13 October, 1982 from 15.00 to 16.30 hours in Committee Room No. 62, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman.

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 3. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 4. Shrimati Suseela Gopalan
- 5. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 6. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 7. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 8. Shri N. K. Shejwalkar
- 9. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 10. Shri Trilok Chand
- 11. Shri V. S. Vijayaraghavan
- 12. Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah

Rajya Sabha

- 13. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 14. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 15. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 16. Shri Era Sezhiyan

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.
- 2. Shri T. E. Jagannathan—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

1. Shri S. Ramaiah-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.

- 2. Shri R. B. Agarwal—Deputy Draftsman, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Legislative Department (Official Languages Wing).
- 3. Dr. Raghbir Singh—Assistant Legislative Counsel.

 REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS.

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. The Committee resumed further clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill vis-a-vis (i) the Government Amendments given notice of and moved by the Minister of State for Home Affairs and (ii) Fresh Amendments etc. given notice of and moved by the members concerned.
 - 3. Clause 8.—The following amendments were accepted:—
 - (i) Page 6, in Marginal heading, for "111A" substitute "114A"
 - (ii) Page 6, line 1, for "8" substitute "6".
 - (iii) Page 6, line 1, for "111" substitute "114"
 - (iv) Page 6, line 3, for "111A" substitute "114A".
 - (v) Page 6, line 4,
 - (a) after "clause (d)"

 insert "or clause (e)"
 - (b) for "clause (f)".

 substitute "clause (g)"
 - (vi) Page 6, line 5, after "intercourse", insert "by the accused"

Clause 8, as amended, was adopted.

4. Clause 1.—The following amendment was accepted:

Page 1, line 4, for "1980". substitute "1982".

Clause 1, as amended, was adopted.

5. Enacting Formula.—The following amendment was accepted:

Page 1, line 1, for "Thirty-first". substitute "Thirty-third"

Enacting Formula, as amended, was adopted.

- 6. Long Title:—The Long Title was adopted without any amendment.
- 7. The Committee authorised the Legislative Counsel to correct patent errors and also to carry out amendments of verbal and consequential nature in the Bill.
- 8. The Committee decided that two sets of memoranda/representations, etc. containing comments/suggestions on the Bill received by the Committee might be placed in the Parliament Library, after the Report had been presented, for reference by the Members of Parliament.

- 9. The Committee then decided to hold their next sitting on Saturday, 23 October, 1982 at 15.00 hours to consider and adopt their draft Report.
- 10. The Chairman then drew the attention of the Members to the provisions contained in Direction 87 of the Directions by the Speaker regarding Minutes of Dissent.
 - 11. The Committee then adjourned.

FORTY-FOURTH SITTING

XLIV

23-10-1982

The Committee sat on Saturday, 23 October, 1982 from 1500 to 1615 hours in Committee Room No. 62, First Floor, Parliament House, New Delhi.

PRESENT

Shri D. K. Naikar-Chairman

MEMBERS

Lok Sabha

- 2. Shri Rasa Behari Behra
- 3. Shrimati Gurbrinder Kaur Brar
- 4. Shrimati Vidyavati Chaturvedi
- 5. Shri V. Kishore Chandra S. Deo
- 6. Shrimati Madhuri Singh
- 7. Shrimati Geeta Mukherjee
- 8. Shri Ram Pyare Panika
- 9. Shri Qazi Saleem
- 10. Shri S. Singarvadival
- 11. Shri R. S. Sparrow
- 12. Shri Trilok Chand
- 13. Shri V. S. Vijavaraghavan
- 14. Shri P. Venkatasubbalah

Rajya Sabha

- 15. Shri Lal K. Advani
- 16. Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj
- 17. Shri Amarprosad Chakraborty
- 18. Shri S. W. Dhabe
- 19. Shri B. Ibrahim
- 20. Shri Dhuleshwar Meena
- 21. Shri V. P. Munusamy
- 22. Shri Leonard Soloman Saring
- 23. Shri Era Sezhiyan
- 24. Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav

SECRETARIAT

- 1. Shri H. G. Paranjpe—Joint Secretary.
- 2. Shri S. D. Kaura—Chief Legislative Committee Officer.
- 3. Shri T. E. Jagannathan—Senior Legislative Committee Officer.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS

- 1. Shri S. Ramaiah-Joint Secretary and Legislative Counsel.
- 2. Shri B. K. Sharma-Joint Secretary and Draftsman.
- 3. Shri R. B. Agarwal-Deputy Draftsman.
- 4. Dr. Raghbir Singh-Assistant Legislative Counsel.

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS

Shri S. V. Sharan-Joint Secretary.

- 2. At the outset, the Chirman apprised the Committee about the subsequent changes in the Schedule in respect of sections 376C and 376D. Since section 376B had been brought in the Schedule with some amendments in respect of cognizable, bailable and triable by the court of session, so sections 376C and 376D were also offences of the same nature and hence they were taken as adopted. This change had been made in the Schedule as consequential amendments as per changes made in respect of section 376B. The Committee agreed to these consequential amendments.
 - 3. The Committee then considered and adopted the Bill, as amended.
 - 4. The Committee thereafter considered and adopted the draft Report.
- 5. The Chairman then drew the attention of the Members to the provisions contained in Direction 87 of the Directions by the Speaker regarding Minutes of Dissent and announced that the Minute of Dissent, if any, might be sent to the Lok Sabha Secretariat by 1600 hours on Friday, 29 October, 1982.
- 6. The Committee authorised the Chairman and, in his absence, Shri R. S. Sparrow to present the Report and lay record of evidence on the Table of the House on Tuesday, 2 November, 1982.
- 7. The Committee also authorised Shri B. Ibrahim and, in his absence, Shri Ramchandra Bharadwaj to lay the Report and the record of evidence on the Table of Rajya Sabha on Tuesday, 2 November, 1982.
- 8. The Committee placed on record their appreciation for the assistance rendered by the Minister of State for Home Affairs (Shri P. Venkatasubbaiah) during the course of their deliberations.
- Q. The Committee also placed on record their appreciation for the co-operation and assistance rendered by the Legislative Counsels and the Draftsman (Hindi) of the Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs (Legislative Department) and officers of the Ministry of Home Affairs.
- 10. The Committee also placed on record their appreciation and thanks to the officers and staff of the Lok Sabha Secretariat for their hard work and valuable assistance rendered by them to facilitate the work of the Committee in all matters and in preparing their draft Report promptly.
- 11. The Chairman, while associating himself in thanking the above-mentioned officers, also thanked the members of the Committee for extending their full co-operation to him in conducting the proceedings of the Committee in most congenial atmosphere.

. . . .

- 12. The Minister of State for Home Affairs while associating himself with the views expressed by the Chairman, also appreciated the work done by the Committee and the officers of the Ministry of Home Affairs, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs and the Lok Sabha Secretariat.
- 13. The Members of the Committee also placed on record their high appreciation and thanks to the Chairman (Shri D. K. Naikar) for very ably and impartially conducting the proceedings of the Committee and guiding their deliberations at various stages of the Bill.
 - 14. The Committee then adjourned.